
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 

2021-22 

 

KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                  2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 
PARTICULARS 

 

PAGE 
NO. 

Introduction 3 

Corporate Profile 4 

Board of Directors & Committees 5 

Director Report & Annexures 6 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report 24 

Auditor’s Report – (Standalone) 32 

Balance Sheet – (Standalone) 43 

Statement of Profit & Loss (Standalone) 44 

Cash Flow Statement – (Standalone) 45 

Auditor’s report  (Consolidated) 67 

Balance Sheet – (Consolidated) 73 

Statement of Profit & Loss  (Consolidated) 74 

Cash Flow Statement (Consolidated) 75 

Notice of the 35th Annual General Meeting 99 

 

 
  



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                  3 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Founded in 1987, we are involved in production of edible oils, animal feed ingredients, soya value added 
products and supply chain of agri commodities. Our wide range of processed and manufactured products 
includes soya de-oiled cake (soya meal), Hipro Soya Meal, soya refined oil, soya crude oil, degummed oil, 
soya lecithin, acid oil, soya husk, cotton seed oil, refined rapeseed oil, rapeseed de-oiled cake, soya grits, 
soya flakes, and soya flour.  
 
We have strategically located plants in the state of Madhya Pradesh comprising of three solvent extraction 
plants, two oil refineries and one flour mill. The location of our plants gives us the competitive edge over 
other players in terms of procurement and availability of major raw material (i.e. soyabean seeds).We have 
cumulative solvent extraction capacity of 3,75,000 TPA, edible oil refining capacity of 60,000 TPA and flour 
milling capacity of 24,000 TPA.  
 
Our two manufacturing units, namely, Khandwa Oils -Unit I and Unit II situated  in Khandwa, M.P., are 
spread in the wide area of around 20 acres, while our another unit located in Kheda, ltarsi, M.P. is spread 
around an area of 10 acres. All our units have a well-equipped  laboratory, modem technology and testing 
equipments with supporting environment and facilities, to ensure that the products conforms with the pre-
determined food standards. 
 
 We possess ISO 9001: 2015 and ISO 22000:2018 certificate in respect of our Khandwa Oils Unit I, certifying 
that our Quality Management  System and Food & Safety Management System are in accordance with the 
requirements of ISO 900 I :2008 and ISO 22000:2018 respectively in regards to manufacture, supply and 
export of our soyabean products. Similarly, we possess ISO 22000:2018 certificate for our unit situated in 
Kheda. 
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CORPORATE PROFILE 
 
 

CIN  ISIN 

   
L15141CT1987PLC003777  INE0KNW01016 

 

REGISTERED OFFICE*  CORPORATE OFFICE 

   
K.N. Building, Panchsheel, Raipur 492001, 
Chhattisgarh, India. 
Tel: +91-771-2293706-08 
web: https://knagri.com/ 
mail: info@kngroup.in 

 B1-506, Marathon Nextgen Innova,  
Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park,  
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013, Maharashtra, 
India.   
Tel: +91-22-43541100 

 

MANUFACTURING FACILITY (ITARSI)  MANUFACTURING FACILITY (KHANDWA) 

   
Industrial Area, Kheda, Itarsi, District 
Hoshangabad- 461111, Madhya Pradesh. 

 Khasra Nos.164/1-6, Village Siltiya,  
Tehsil Pandhana, District East Nimad – 450001, 
Madhya Pradesh. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITOR  SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

   
N. Kumar & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
1st Floor, Hotel Chanakya Complex,  
Station Road, Jamshedpur-831002 
(FRN: 004110C) 

 Amit Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
Chandni Chowk, Near Poddar Steel Industries, 
Ganj Ward, Gondia-441601 
CP No. 15315 ;  PR No. 1740/2022 

 
COST AUDITOR  REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT 

(RTA)   
 Sanat Joshi & Associates 
‘Prem Poorn’ , Din Dayal Upadhyay Nagar, 
W.R.S. Colony, Raipur- 492008 
Chhattisgarh, India. 
(FRN: 000506) 

  
Link Intime India Private Limited C-101, 
1st Floor, 247 Park, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai-
400083 Maharashtra, India. 
e-mail: mumbai@linkintime.co.in 
Tel. No.: +91-22-4918-6060 
web: www.linkintime.co.in 

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE 
OFFICER 

 

   
Mr. Akshat Sharma 
(Appointed w.e.f. 10.12.2021) 

  

 
 

*Registered Office of the Company changed from ‘KN Building, Subhash Road, Ramsagarpara, Raipur-492001’  to 
‘KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur-492001’ w.e.f. 07.11.2022 within the same city.    
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 & COMMITTEES 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
  
Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal Chairman & Managing Director 
Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal Whole-time Director 
Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal Whole-time Director & CFO 
Mr. Pradeep Totla Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood Independent Director 
Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani* Independent Director 

 
AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 
 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE 

     
Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood 
Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani 

Chairman 
Member 
Member 

 Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood 
Mr. Pradeep Totla 
Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani 

Chairman 
Member 
Member 

 
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP 

COMMITTEE 
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
COMMITTEE 

     
Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood 
Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal 
Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal 
Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal 

Chairman 
Member 
Member 
Member 

 Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal 
Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal 
Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani 

Chairman 
Member 
Member 
Member 

 
 

*Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani resigned from directorship w.e.f. November 28, 2022. 
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 DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
To 
The Members,  
KN Agri Resources Limited 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 35th Annual Report on the business & operations of the Company 
together with the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
 
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 
 

                                                                                                                                          (Rs. in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 

Revenue from Operations 188101.70 129895.49 188101.70 129895.49 

Other Income 378.26 223.86 378.26 223.86 

Total Revenue 188479.95 130119.34 188479.95 130119.34 

Profit before Tax (PBT) 6369.96 3513.46 6369.96 3513.46 

Less: Provision for Taxation 
           Current Tax 
           Deferred Tax 

- 
1700.35 
(49.46) 

- 
974.41 
(45.42) 

- 
1700.35 
(49.46) 

- 
974.41 
(45.42) 

Profit after Tax (PAT) 4719.07 2584.46 4719.07 2584.46 

Net Change in Fair Value of Investments 10.53 (148.45) 10.53 (148.45) 

Net Change in Fair Value Of Right of use of 
assets. 

(1.49) 0.00 (1.49) 0.00 

Income Tax on items that will not be 
reclassified subsequently to Profit & Loss 

(2.65) 37.36 (2.65) 37.36 

Total Comprehensive income for the year 4725.47 2473.38 4724.97 2473.38 

 
2. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

 
Standalone: 
 
Your Company’s performance during the year under review has been record high and highest ever in the history of 
the Company, Your directors are of the view that company has signaled good progress and will continue to access 
the path of success in succeeding financial years. 
 
During the Year under review, Your Company has recorded a turnover of Rs. 188,101.70 Lakhs as compared to 
turnover of Rs. 129,895.49 Lakhs during the previous financial year. The company registered the PAT (Profit after 
Tax) of Rs. 4719.07 Lakhs, as compared to Rs. 2584.46 Lakhs, during the previous financial year. 
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During the year, the Company registered an increase in net profit before tax (PBT) by 81.3% amounting to Rs 6369.95 
Lakhs in the financial year 2021-22 as compared to Rs. 3513.46 Lakhs in financial year 2020-21. The financial result 
as reflected in the profit and loss account of the Company is self-explanatory. 
 
Consolidated: 
 
During the Year under review, Your Company has consolidated turnover of Rs. 1,88,101.70 Lakhs as compared to 
turnover of Rs 1,29,895.49 Lakhs during the previous financial year. The company registered the PAT (Profit after 
Tax) of Rs 4,724.97 Lakhs, as compared to Rs. 2,473.38 Lakhs, during the previous financial year. 
 
3. SHARE CAPITAL 

 
The paid up Equity Share Capital of the company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 24,99,89,100 divided into 2,49,98,910 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
4. DETAILS OF INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER & LISTING 
 
We are pleased to inform that the Company had made an Initial Public Offer of 65,84,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each for a consideration of Rs. 75 per equity share (including the share premium amount of Rs. 65 per equity share) 
vide prospectus dated March 22, 2022. 
 
The IPO had received an exceptional response from the public and the company achieved a record of highest ever 
subscription till date, on the NSE Emerge Platform. The issue was over-subscribed on overall basis, as well as in the 
QIB, NII, and RII category. 
 
The equity shares of the Company got listed on the National Stock Exchange – SME Platform (NSE Emerge) with 
effect from March 28, 2022. 
 
5. UTILIZATION OF IPO PROCEEDS 

 
The IPO proceeds has been fully utilized for the purpose(s) as stated in the prospectus dated 22.03.2022. Further, 
there has been no Deviation(s) or Variation(s) in the use of public issue proceeds raised from Initial Public Offer (IPO),  
pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations) 2015. 
 
6. RESERVE & SURPLUS  

 
The Board has proposed to retain the surplus in profit & Loss Account. Hence, the company has not transferred any 
amount to the General Reserves Account during the Financial Year 2021-22. 

 
7. DIVIDEND  
In view of the need to provide for further growth and building up of the financial health of the Company, your 
Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
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8. DEPOSIT :   
     

The Company has not invited /accepted any deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 
9. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 
There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the Financial year i.e. 31st March, 2022, to which the Financial Statements 
relate and the date of the report, if any, disclosed in separate respective head. 
 
10. CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

 
Your Company has shifted its Registered office from KN Building 'KN Building, Subhash Road, Ramsagarpara, Raipur 
(C.G.) 492001’ to 'KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur (C.G.) - 492001', with effect from November 07,2022. 
 
11. CHANGE OF NAME OF COMPANY: 

 
During the year under review Company has changed its name from “Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited” to “KN Agri 
Resources Private Limited” and received fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon Name change from the 
Registrar of Companies dated October 26, 2021. 
 
Further, during the year under review, the Company has been converted from private limited company to public 
limited company and consequent upon conversion into public limited company, the name of the Company has been 
changed from “KN Agri Resources Private Limited” to “KN Agri Resources Limited” and fresh certificate of 
incorporation dated November 22, 2021 has been issued by the Registrar of Companies. 

 
12. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 
During the year, Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal (DIN: 00323316) Director of the Company has been appointed as Chairman & 
Managing Director of the Company. Whereas, Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal (DIN: 00860294) and Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
(DIN: 00324169) has been appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. December 07, 2021. 
 
During the year, Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood (DIN: 00106839) and Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani (DIN: 02855014) has been 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. December 07, 2021. 

 
During the year under review, Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal was appointed as a Chief Financial officer of the Company 
and Mr. Akshat Sharma was appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company with effect from December 10, 2021. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, Director of the Company retires by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of 
the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.  
 
Further, Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani (DIN: 02855014) Non-Executive Independent Director has resigned from the 
directorship of the Company w.e.f. November 28, 2022. The Board of Directors of the company appreciates the 
invaluable services rendered by her during the tenure. 

 
13. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ETC. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated criteria for evaluation of the performance of the each 
of the directors of the Company. On the basis of said criteria, the Board and all its committees and directors have 
been evaluated by the Board of the Directors and Independent Directors of the Company. 
 
14. NO. OF BOARD MEETINGS: 
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During the period under review, a total of 31 (Thirty one)  Board Meetings were convened and held. 
 

 
15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
I. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company have re-constituted Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee in the Board meeting held on December 10, 2021.  
 
The detailed composition of the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee at present is given 
below: 

 
*Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani has resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 28.11.2022. 

 
The Committee met Three times during the year 2021-22 and the attendance of the members at these meetings was 
as follows: 

 

Sr. No. DATE 
NO. OF 

DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

Sr. No. DATE 
NO. OF 

DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

1.  01.04.2021 3 17. 04.12.2021 4 
2.  25.05.2021 2 18. 10.12.2021 6 
3.  03.06.2021 4 19. 23.12.2021 3 
4.  12.07.2021 2 20. 04.01.2022 3 
5.  20.08.2021 4 21. 25.01.2022 3 
6.  25.08.2021 4 22. 11.02.2022 2 
7.  27.08.2021 4 23. 18.02.2022 3 
8.  01.09.2021 2 24. 07.03.2022 3 
9.  08.09.2021 4 25. 10.03.2022 3 
10.  18.09.2021 4 26. 14.03.2022 2 
11.  20.09.2021 2 27. 22.03.2022 4 
12.  20.09.2021 3 28. 22.03.2022 2 
13.  26.10.2021 2 29. 24.03.2022 2 
14.  01.11.2021 4 30. 26.03.2022 2 
15.  10.11.2021 4 31. 30.03.2022 5 
16.  24.11.2021 4 - - - 

NAME DESIGNATION 

Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal Chairman (Executive Director) 
Mr.  Sanjay  Shrishrimal Member (Executive Director) 
Mr.  Dhirendra Shrishrimal Member (Executive Director) 

Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani* Member (Independent Non-Executive Director) 

NAME DESIGNATION 
Attendance at the CSR committee meetings 

03.01.2022 05.02.2022 10.03.2022 

Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal Chairman Present Present Present 
Mr.  Sanjay  Shrishrimal Member Present Present Present 

Mr.  Dhirendra Shrishrimal Member Present Present Present 
Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani  Member Present Present Present 
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II. CSR Committee’s Responsibility Statement: 
 

CSR Committees hereby states that the implementation and monitoring of CSR activities, is in compliance with CSR 
objectives and Policy of the Company. 
 
III. Disclosure under Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 
The Board of Directors have constituted a CSR Committee comprising of four directors. The brief outline of the 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR 
activities during the year are set out in Annexure “B” of this report in the format prescribed in the companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 
 
16. CHANGES IN STATUS OF SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND JOINT VENTURES: 

 
As on March 31, 2022, the company has two ‘associate company’. Further the company does not have any 
‘subsidiary company’ and ‘joint venture’. Subject to Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to 
prepare Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year 2021-22 in respect of Associate Company. Further a 
statement containing salient features of financial Statement of Associate Company in prescribed format AOC-1 is 
appended to this Board Report as Annexure – C. 

  
17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
 
The Statement containing the names and other particulars of the employees of the company as required under Rule 
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended to this Board 
Report as Annexure – E. 
 
18. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:  

 
During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 
19. RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
The Company has devised and implemented a mechanism for risk management. The Company has laid down a 
comprehensive Risk assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. 
These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly 
defined framework. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance 
actions to mitigate it. 
    
20. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:  
 
The Company has adequate internal financial control with reference to financial statements and such controls were 
tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was noticed.  The internal financial control of 
the company is adequate to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, safeguarding of the assets, and that the 
business is conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. 
 
21. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS:  

 
During the year under review, no instances of fraud were reported by the auditors of the company, in their 
respective audit reports, pursuant to Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
22. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
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Pursuant to provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there under, M/s N. Kumar & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 004110C), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the 
conclusion of 32nd (Thirty First) Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2019 till the conclusion of the 37th 
(Thirty Seventh) Annual General Meeting, for the period of five consecutive years. 

  
23. AUDITORS' REPORT:  

      
The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors' remarks in their report are 
self-explanatory and do not call for any future comments. 

  
24. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

 
The books of account relating to materials, labour and other items of cost records maintained by the company 
pursuant to the section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained by the company. 
 
25. COST AUDITOR & AUDIT REPORT: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Record and 
Audit) Amendment Rules 2014 M/s Sanat Joshi & Associates were appointed as cost auditors of the Company for 
conducting Cost Audit for the Financial Year under review. 

 
26. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:  

 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the draft annual return as on 31st March, 2022 prepared in accordance with 
Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on the website of the Company and can be assessed using the link 
https://knagri.com/annual-returns/. 

     
27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
All contracts & arrangements with related parties entered by the Company during the Financial Year, were in the 
ordinary course of Business and on arm’s length basis. Details of related party transactions entered by the Company 
during the year 2021-22, in terms of Ind AS have been disclosed in the financial statements forming part of this 
Annual Report. 
 
Further, your company has not entered into any material Related Party Transactions during the year under review. 
Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form AOC-
2 is not applicable to the Company for the Financial year 2021-22. 
 
28. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
The particulars of investments made and loans granted by the Company as covered under the provisions of Section 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to Standalone Financial Statements forming part of the Annual 
Report. Further, your Company has not extended corporate guarantee on behalf of any other Company, during the 
year under review. 
 
29. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 

The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints 
Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, 
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company has not received any complaints 
during the year 2021-22. 
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30. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of section 149 (7) of the Companies act, 2013 regarding meeting the criteria of Independence laid down 
under section 149 (6) of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 
 
31. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO 
 

The information pertaining to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and 
outgo as required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure – F. 
 
32. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

 
The Board of Directors have established ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ and ‘Code of Conduct’ for the directors & employees 
of the Company as required under the provisions of Sec. 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014. 

 
33. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

 
The Board have ensured the compliances with the provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards to the best of 
their knowledge. 

 
34. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT: 

 
The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Amit Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (CP No. 
15315) as Secretarial Auditor of the Company pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013, to undertake 
secretarial audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22. 
 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 under Act, read with Rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) is set out 
in the Annexure- A to this report. 
 
The Board has examined and noted the comments / remarks mentioned by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report. 
 
35. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
In terms of the Regulation 34(2)(e), and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion & Analysis Report forms the part of this Board Report as Annexure – 
D. 
 
36. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR) 

 
The Business Responsibility Report as required under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, is not applicable on the company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 
 
37. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
The disclosure requirements as required under Para C of the Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, are not applicable to the Company pursuant to Regulation 15(2), since the 
company is listed on the SME Exchange. 
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38. DETAILS OF APPLICATIONS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016: 

 
There are no applications made during the financial year 2021-22 by or against the company and there are no 
proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. 

 
39. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME 

SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 

 
Your company has not made any one time settlement with any of its lenders. 
 
40. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors state that—  

 
a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the mandatory Accounting Standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures. 
 
b) Proper Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently; and, the judgments and estimates that 

are made are reasonable and prudent so as give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as on 
March 31, 2022 and of the Profit of the Company for that period. 

 
c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company and preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities.  

 
d) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
e) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

41. COMPANY RELATIONS: 
 
The company has maintained good industrial relations on all fronts. Your directors wish to place on record their 
appreciation for the honest and efficient services rendered by the employees of the company. 
 
42. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS   

    
The directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by Bank, its 
employees, its investors and all other associates and look forward to continue fruitful association with all business 
partners of the company. 

 
 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

KN Agri Resources Limited 
 
 
 

Date: November 28, 2022 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Place: Raipur Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
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ANNEXURE – A 
‘SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT’ 

 
Form No. MR-3 

 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
To,  
The Members,  
KN Agri Resources Limited 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777   
K.N.Building, Subhash Road,, 
Ramsagarpara, Raipur-492001, Chhattisgarh. 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by KN Agri Resources Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) for the audit period 
covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me 
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31,2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the applicable provisions of:  
 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment in India; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; 
d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021.-(not 

applicable to the company during the audit period); 
e. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2021- (not 

applicable to the company during the audit period); 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (not applicable to the company during the 
audit period) 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 and the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                  15 

h. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (not applicable to 
the company during the audit period) 

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; and 

j. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,2018. (not applicable to the 
company during the audit period) 

  
The management has identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to the company: 
 

(i) The Factories Act, 1948 
(ii) Food Safety Standards Act, 2006 
(iii) Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to employees appointed by the Company either on its payroll or 

on contractual basis ; 
(iv) Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and indirect Tax; 
(v) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013; 
(vi) The Customs Act, 1962 
(vii) Environment ( Protections) Act  and other environment related act 
(viii) Other laws relating to trademark, competition act, Madhya Pradesh Krishi Upaj Mandi Adhiniyam, 1972. 
(ix) Such other Local laws etc. as may be applicable in respect of the offices/ branches of the Company. 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 

(i) The listing agreement under SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations ,2015 entered 
into by the Company with National Stock Exchange Limited and; 

 
(ii) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

 
During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc; 
 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Change in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in accordance with the provision of the 
Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
During the year under review, decisions were carried through unanimously and none of the board members 
dissented to any resolutions/recommendations during the year.  
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, circulars, 
notifications, directions and guidelines.  
 
I further report that during the period under review: 
 

1. The company had filed form CHG-8 for condonation of delay in satisfaction of Charge  with the State Bank of 
India and with additional payment of fees, the company had received the certificate of Registration of 
satisfaction of Charge. 

 
2. The company has come out with initial public offer vide prospectus dated 22th March 2022 wherein 65,84,000 

equity shares have been allotted on  24th March, 2022. The Equity Shares of the company have been listed 
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under SME platform with National Stock Exchange w.e.f 28th March 2022and Total 24998910 equity share 
have been listed at NSE. 

 
3. The company has disbursed/ transferred the CSR funds under the statutory obligations laid down in section 

135 of the Act to the implementing agency in during the period under review. As informed by the 
management that the amount remaining unspent on march 31,2021 required to be transferred to fund 
specified in schedule VII for the financial year 2020-21  was also paid to implementing agency for use in the 
activity mentioned in CSR policy of the company. 

 
4. The company name has been changed from Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited to K N Agri Resources Private 

limited and certificate from the ROC has been obtained in this respect. Further K N Agri Resources Private 
limited was then converted to KN Agri Resources Limited and ROC certificate for the conversion from private 
limited to Public limited received dated 22/11/2021..  

 
5. The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws, like Direct and Indirect tax Laws has not been 

reviewed in this Audit Since the same have been subject to the review by the Statutory Auditors and other 
designated professionals. 
 

 
Date:  28.11.2022 For AMIT SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 
Place: Gondia Company Secretaries 
UDIN: A040995D002368045  
  
 AMIT KUMAR SHARMA 
 Proprietor 
 ACS No.: 40995 
 CP No.: 15315 

P.R Certificate :1740/2022 
 
Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A herewith and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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‘Annexure A’ to the Secretarial Audit Report 
 

To,  
The Members,  
KN Agri Resources Limited 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777   
K.N.Building, Subhash Road,, 
Ramsagarpara, Raipur-492001, Chhattisgarh. 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on my audit. 
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion. 
 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
the management. My examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

Date:  28.11.2022 For AMIT SHARMA & ASSOCIATES 
Place: Gondia Company Secretaries 
UDIN: A040995D002368045  
  
 AMIT KUMAR SHARMA 
 Proprietor 
 ACS No.: 40995 
 CP No.: 15315 

P.R Certificate :1740/2022 
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ANNEXURE – B 
‘ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES’ 

 
1. A brief outline on Company’s CSR policy 

 
KN Agri Resources Limited has identified Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as a strategic tool for sustainable 
growth and CSR means not only investment of funds for social activity but also a continuous integration of 
business processes with social processes.  The Company is committed towards sustainability and community 
development. The activities are implemented either directly or through implementing agencies. 

 
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee. 
 

The Company has a CSR committee of directors comprising of- 
 

S.  
NO. NAME DESIGNATION 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 

HELD DURING 
THE YEAR 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

DURING THE 
YEAR 

1. Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal Chairman (Executive Director) 3 3 

2. Mr.  Sanjay  Shrishrimal Member (Executive Director) 3 3 

3. Mr.  Dhirendra Shrishrimal Member (Executive Director) 3 3 

4. *Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani 
Member (Independent Non-Executive 

Director) 
3 3 

 
*Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani was appointed as the member of the CSR Committee w.e.f. 10.12.2021.and has resigned 
w.e.f. 28.11.2022. 

 
3. Weblinks: 
 

Composition of CSR Committee:  https://knagri.com/bod-and-committees/ 
CSR Policy: https://knagri.com/corporate-policies/ 

 
4. Details of impact of assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
 
Not Applicable 

 
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any. 
 

S. No. Financial Year 
Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial 
years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be set-off 
for the financial year, if any 

(in Rs) 

Not Applicable 

 
6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 28,53,00,443 
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7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 57,06,009 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 

NIL 

 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL 

 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 57,06,009 

 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount spent for the 
Financial Year 

(Rs.) 

Unspent Amount (Rs.) 

Total unspent amount transferred to 
unspent CSR account u/s 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund under Schedule VII – 
Second Proviso to Section 135(6) 

Amount Date of Transfer Name of Fund Amount Date of Transfer 

1,67,00,000 Not Applicable 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year: 
 

S.  
N
o 

Name 
of the 

Project/
Activity 

Item from 
list of 

activities in 
Sch. VII 

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No) 

Location of the Project 

Project 
Duratio

n 

Am
oun

t 
alloc
ated 
for 
the 
proj
ect 

(Rs.) 

Amou
nt 

spent 
in the 
Curre

nt 
Financ

ial 
year 
(Rs.) 

Mode 
of 

Imple
menta
tion – 
Direct 
(Yes/
No) 

Mode of Implementation 
through Implementation 

Agency 

State District Name 

CSR 
Registra

tion 
No. 

Not Applicable 

 
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing Projects for the Financial Year: 

 

Sr.  
N
o. 

Name of the 
Project/Activity 

Item 
from 
list of 
activit
ies in 
Sch. 
VII 

Loca
l 

Are
a 

(Yes
/No) 

Location of the Project 
Amount  
spent for 

the 
Project 

(Rs.) 

Mod
e of 
Impl
eme
ntat
ion 
– 

Dire
ct 

(Yes
/No) 

Mode of Implementation 
through Implementation Agency 

State District Name 
CSR 

Registration 
No. 

1. Education 
Clause

(ii) 
No Maharashtra Pune 65,00,000 No 

Pimpri 
Chinchwad 

Education Trust 
CSR00012534 

2. 
Education and 

Empowerment for 
differently abled. 

Clause
(ii) 

No Maharashtra Mumbai 25,00,000 No 
Omkar Andh 

Apang Samajik 
Sanstha 

CSR00003196 
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3. 
Empowerment of the 
socially/economically 

backward groups. 

Clause 
(iii) 

No PAN India - 25,00,000 No 
Jan Jagrati 

Sevarth 
Sansthan 

CSR00006903 

4. Education Clause
(ii) 

No PAN India - 52,00,000 No 
Dr.Vithalrao 
Vikhe Patil 
Foundation 

CSR00012677 

 
Note: Out of the above payments made during the year, sum of Rs. 57,88,732 pertain to CSR amount spent for the Financial Year 
2021-22. Thus, the Company has spent an aggregate amount of Rs. 1,09,11,268 in the reporting Financial Year 2021-22 towards 
adjustment of shortfall in the CSR obligation of preceding years. Further, as on 31.03.2022, the Company does not have any 
outstanding unspent amount of preceding Financial years, remaining to be spent in succeeding Financial year. 
 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 
 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment: NIL 
 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.1,67,00,000 

        (Rs. 57,88,732 pertain to CSR amount spent for the Financial Year 2021-22.) 
 
(g) Excess amount for set off: 
 

S.No. Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

(i) 2% of the average net profit of the Company  as per Section 135 (3) 57,06,009 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 57,88,732 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 82,723 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any NIL 

(v)  Amount available for set-off in succeeding Financial Years  [(iii)-(iv)] 82,723 

 
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Preceding 
F.Y. 

Amount 
transferred to 
unspent CSR 
account u/s 

135(6) 
(Rs.) 

Amount spent in 
the reporting F.Y. 

(Rs.) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII under Section 135(6) (if any) 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

Financial Year 
(Rs.) 

Name of the Fund 
Amount 

(Rs.) 
Date of 
Transfer 

Not Applicable 

 
Note: The Company has spent an aggregate amount of Rs. 1,09,11,268 in the reporting Financial Year 2021-22 towards 
adjustment of shortfall in the CSR obligation of preceding years. Further, as on 31.03.2022, the Company does not have any 
outstanding unspent amount of preceding Financial years, remaining to be spent in succeeding Financial year. 
 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent for the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding Financial 
Year(s): 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Project 
ID 

Name of 
Project 

F.Y. in which 
Project was 
commenced 

Project 
Duration 

Total 
Amount 

allocated 
for project 

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
F.Y. 

Cumulative 
amount 

spent at the 
end of 

reporting 
F.Y. 

Status of 
the project 
completed 
/ ongoing 

Not Applicable 
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset,details relating to the asset so created or acquired 

through CSR spent in the financial year: 
 
Not Applicable 
 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): 

 
   Not Applicable 

 
 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

KN Agri Resources Limited 
 
 
 

Date: November 28, 2022 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Place: Raipur Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
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ANNEXURE – C 

‘STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF SUBSIDIARIES / 
 ASSOCIATE COMPANIES / JOINT VENTURES’ 

 
Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.) 
 

Part A – Subsidiaries 
 

1. Name of the Subsidiary 

NOT APPLICABLE 

2. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 

3. 
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company's reporting period. 

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

5. Share capital 

6. Reserves and surplus 

7. Total assets 

8. Total Liabilities 

9. Investments 

10. Turnover 

11. Profit before taxation 

12. Provision for taxation 

13. Profit after taxation 

14. Proposed Dividend 

15. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 

 
Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:  Not Applicable 

Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable  
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Part B – Associates and Joint Ventures 
 

S.No. Particulars (I) 
Raipur Mega Food 

Park Private Limited 

(II) 
Bluebrahma Clean 
Energy Solutions 
Private Limited 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date As on 31.03.2022 As on 31.03.2022 

2 

Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company 
on the year end: 

  

   No. of Shares 2,64,600 1,38,45,000 

   Amount of Investment Rs. 224.10 Lakhs Rs. 1904.50 Lakhs 

   Extent of Holding (%) 45% 26% 

4. Description of Significant Influence Due to Shareholding Due to Shareholding 

5. Reason why the Joint Venture is not consolidated NA NA 

6. 
Net Worth attributable to Shareholding as per Latest 
Audited Balance Sheet Rs. 222.81 Lakhs Rs. 1614.98 Lakhs 

7. 

Profit / Loss for the year:   

   i. Considered in Consolidation Rs. 0.50 Lakhs - 

   ii. Not Considered in Consolidation - Rs. 39.91 Lakhs 

 
Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations:  Not applicable 

Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable 
 

 
 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

KN Agri Resources Limited 
 

 
Date: November 28, 2022 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Place: Raipur Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   

 
Akshat Sharma 

Company Secretary 
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ANNEXURE – D 
‘MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT’ 

 
A. Industry Structure and Developments 

 
Global Economy 
 
Global Growth has been affected by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. Other Factors influencing Global economy are 
liquidity, debt distress, climate change and pandemic. 
 
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and its effects on commodity markets, supply chains, inflation, and financial conditions 
have steepened the slowdown in global growth. One key risk to the outlook is the possibility of high global inflation 
accompanied by tepid growth. At the same time, economic damage from the conflict will contribute to a significant 
slowdown in global growth in 2022 and add to inflation. Fuel and food prices have increased rapidly, hitting 
vulnerable populations in low-income countries hardest. 
 
This could eventually result in a sharp tightening of monetary policy in advanced economies, which could lead to 
financial stress in some emerging market and developing economies. A forceful and wide-ranging policy response is 
required to boost growth, bolster macroeconomic frameworks, reduce financial vulnerabilities, and support 
vulnerable groups. 
 
Indian Economy 
 
The Indian economy grew 8.7 per cent in 2021-22, with the gross domestic product (GDP) expanding 4.1 per cent in 
the March quarter from a year ago. The GDP growth for 2021-22 takes the economy above its pre-pandemic level 
and is an improvement after contracting 6.6 per cent in 2020-21. 
 
Following a contraction of 7.3% in 2020-21, the Indian economy is expected to grow by 9.2% in real terms in 2021-22. 
GDP is expected to grow in real terms by 8-8.5% in 2022-23. The "second wave's" economic effect was significantly 
less than the full lockdown in 2020-21, but the health consequences were far more severe. 
 
The coming year is expected to see an increase in private sector investment with the financial system in strong shape 
to support the country’s economic recovery. The projection is equivalent to the World Bank's and Asian 
Development Bank's recent predictions of 8.7% and 7.5% real GDP growth for 2022-23, respectively. In 2021-22, 
agriculture and allied industries are predicted to grow by 3.9%, industry by 11.8%, and services by 8.2%. 
 
Edible Oil & Soya Product Market 
 
India is the world’s second-largest consumer and number one importer of vegetable oil, consuming around 23 million 
tons of edible oil every year. Out of the total requirement, around 10 million tons is estimated to be produced 
domestically from primary sources. Edible oils like soybean oil, mustard oil, and sunflower oil are largely used for 
domestic consumption. Other edible oils include sesame oil, coconut oil, groundnut oil, rice bran oil, etc. 
 
In terms of volume, the four key edible oils - palm, soybean, mustard and sunflower - constitute 85-88% of the total 
edible oil consumption in India. The edible oil retail market has been growing steadily at a CAGR of 6% in the last five 
years and is estimated to be around Rs. 1,79,500 crores. 
 
The soya market consists of products like soya flakes, soya flours, soya grits, soya TVP (Textured Vegetable Protein), 
soya lecithin, soya distillate, among other value-added products. The soya chunks retail market in India is estimated 
to be around Rs. 2,000 crores and is expected to jump to Rs. 3,422 crores by FY 2024-25. 
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Agriculture and Food Management 
 
Agriculture has witnessed strong growth in the last two years, accounting for 18.8% of the country's Gross Value 
Added (GVA) in 2021-22, with growth of 3.6% in 2020-21 and 3.9% in 2021-22. Crop diversity is aided by the 
Minimum Support Price (MSP) policy. In the most recent Situation Assessment Survey (SAS), net earnings from crop 
output grew by 22.6% as compared to the 2014 SAS Report. 
 
Agriculture's allied areas, including as animal husbandry, dairying, and fisheries, are rapidly developing as high-
growth sectors and important drivers of total growth in the agricultural sector. 
 
B. Opportunities and Threats 

 
Opportunities & Threats 
 
The demand for soybean by-products like soybean meal and oil cakes has increased over the past few years. The high 
nutritional value of the products has enhanced their popularity among consumers. The increased disposable income 
of consumers in developed countries and the improved soybean productivity in these countries contributed to the 
demand for soybean by-products.  
 
The increased awareness among farmers about soybean cultivation and the well-equipped nature of cultivation in 
the region enhanced soybean production. The domestic and global demand for oilseeds like soybean has been rising 
over the years, impacting the prices of soybean and farmers' revenue positively. 
 
India has developed sustainable standards for soyabean production, a move that could help farmers improve 
productivity while enhancing competitiveness of the processing industry globally. The Indian Standards for 
Sustainable Soya (ISSS), launched at the soya conclave in Indore, were developed by the Soyabean Processors 
Association of India(SOPA), the Indian Institute of Soyabean Research, along with the support of key soya industries 
and businesses. 
 
Weather conditions play a major role in affecting the productivity of any crop. Accurate and intensified weather 
forecasting coupled with correct and timely advisory system at grass root level will definitely help in improving the 
productivity. 
 
C. Segment-wise Performance 

                                                                                                                                                              Rs. (in Lakhs) 

  
Particulars 

Year Ended 

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
1 
  
  

Segment-wise Revenue    

(a) Agri Commodities 187931.60 129779.79 

(b) Power 170.09 115.7 

Total 188101.69 129895.49 

Net Sales/Income from Operations 188101.69 129895.49 

2 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Segment Results   

Profit/Loss before Interest and Tax:   

(a) Agri Commodities 6579.51 3113.14 

(b) Power -15.92 -63.4 

Total  6563.59 3049.74 

Less: Interest 193.63 -463.72 

Total Profit Before tax 6369.96 3513.46 

Highlight
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D. Outlook 
 
In India, the changing consumer dietary habits are primarily augmenting the demand for soybean oil based on its 
neutral taste, high smoke point, and low saturated fat content. Moreover, rising consumer health concerns have led 
to the introduction of healthy product variants for managing heart health and lowering blood cholesterol levels. 
Additionally, the high penetration of international food trends in India has led to the increasing utilization of soybean 
oil in preparing condiments, dressings, mayonnaise, non-dairy creamers, margarine, shortenings, whipped toppings, 
etc. Besides this, the rising consumer sedentary lifestyles and their hectic work schedules are also augmenting the 
demand for soybean oil in processed food items.  
 
E. Risks and Concerns 
 
The Company is committed to recognizing and managing the risks it is exposed to, both internal and external, and 
has put in place mechanisms to handle the same proactively and efficiently. The Company also recognizes that these 
risks could adversely affect its ability to create value for all stakeholders, and has taken steps to mitigate the same. 
 
F. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy 

 
Your Company has in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its size and nature of 
business. The system provides a reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational information, 
complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with corporate 
policies. 

 
The Company has put in place proper controls, which are reviewed at regular intervals to ensure that transactions 
are properly authorized and correctly reported and assets are safeguarded. 
 
G. Financial performance  
 
 During the Year under review, Your Company has recorded a turnover of Rs. 188,101.70 Lakhs as compared to 

turnover of Rs. 129,895.49 Lakhs during the previous financial year.  
 
 The company registered the PAT (Profit after Tax) of Rs. 4719.07 Lakhs, as compared to Rs. 2584.46 Lakhs, during 

the previous financial year. 
 
 During the year, the Company registered an increase in net profit before tax (PBT) by 81.3% amounting to Rs 

6369.95 Lakhs in the financial year 2021-22 as compared to Rs. 3513.46 Lakhs in financial year 2020-21.  
 
 The financial result as reflected in the profit and loss account of the Company is self-explanatory. 
 
H. Human Resources / Industrial Relations  
 
Human capital is viewed as a valuable resource and an integral part of the Company’s success and your Company 
strongly believes that its employees are the key pillar of your company’s success. 
 
The Company recognizes that its employees are its principal assets and that it’s continued growth is dependent upon 
the ability to attract and retain quality people. The Company also recognizes the importance of providing training 
and development opportunities to its people to enhance their skills and experiences, which in turn enables the 
company to achieve its business objectives. 
 
The Company believes in establishing and building a strong performance and competency driven culture amongst its 
employees with greater sense of accountability and responsibility. The industrial relations within the Company have 
remained harmonious throughout the year. 
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I. Key Financial Ratios 
 

S.No. Particulars 2020-21 2021-22 Variance 
1. Debtors Turnover 66.72 78.24 17% 
2. Inventory Turnover 15.29 14.07 -8% 
3. Interest Coverage Ratio* 6.58 33.9 295.10% 
4. Current Ratio** 4.74 6.53 38% 
5. Debt-Equity Ratio*** 0.14 0.06 -55% 
6. Operating Profit Margin % 25.1 25.74 3% 
7. Net Profit Margin %**** 1.99 2.5 26% 
8. Return on Net Worth 25.1 25.74 3% 

 
Explanation (For variance of 25% or more): 
 
*The gross revenue has improved due to increase in volume of business, leading to better fund management. 
**Due to increase in Cash / Bank Balance out of IPO Proceeds. 
***Due to Increase in Shareholders Equity on account of IPO 
****The gross revenue has improved with increase in volume of business, leading to better fund management. 
 
Cautionary Statement 
 
Statements made herein, in the ‘Management Discussion & Analysis Report’ describing the Company’s projections, 
estimates, expectations, plans or predictions or industry conditions or events are “forward looking statement.” The 
actual results may differ from those expected or predicted, since the Company’s operations are influenced by many 
external factors which are beyond the control of your Company.  
 
 
 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

KN Agri Resources Limited 
 
 
 

Date: November 28, 2022 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Place: Raipur Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
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ANNEXURE – E 

‘DETAILS OF REMUNERATION’ 
 

[Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year 2021-22: 
 

 
Name 
 

Designation 
Remuneration 
(Rs.) 

Ratio to 
Median 

Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal Chairman & Managing Director 120,00,000 88.03 

Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal Whole-time Director 120,00,000 88.03 

Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal Whole-time Director & CFO 120,00,000 88.03 

Mr. Pradeep Totla Non-Executive Director NIL N.A. 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood Independent Director NIL N.A. 

Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani Independent Director NIL N.A. 

 
Percentage increase in the remuneration of Directors, Chief Financial Officer, and Company 
Secretary in the financial year 2021-22: 
 

 
Name 
 

Designation 
Percentage Increase 
In the Remuneration 

Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal* Chairman & Managing Director N.A. 

Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal Whole-time Director 42.86% 

Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal Whole-time Director & CFO 42.86% 

Mr. Pradeep Totla Non-Executive Director ( 40.97% ) 

Mr. Gopal Krishan Sood Independent Director N.A. 

Ms. Poonam Rishi Pilani  Independent Director N.A. 

Mr. Akshat Sharma** Company Secretary N.A. 

 
* No Remuneration was received by Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal during the financial year 2020-21. Therefore, the     

remuneration data is not comparable. 
 

**Mr. Akshat Sharma was appointed in the Company w.e.f. 10.12.2021. 
 
Notes: 

 
1. The percentage increase in the median Remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2021-22 was 3.89%. 
 
2. There were total 240 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2022. 
 
3. During the Financial Year 2021-22, the average percentile increase in the salaries of employees (other than the 

managerial personnel) was 4.72 %. Whereas, the average percentile increase in the remuneration of managerial 
personnel was 3.55 % during the said year.  
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4. None of the employees were in receipt of remuneration aggregating to the limit prescribed under Rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  
 

5. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the financial year ended 31st March 2022, were as per the 
remuneration policy of the Company. 
 

 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 
KN Agri Resources Limited 

 
 
 

Date: November 28, 2022 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Place: Raipur Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
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ANNEXURE – F 

‘ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS OUTGO’ 

 
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the  

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 
 

A. ENERGY CONSERVATION 
 

(i) Steps taken for Conservation of 
energy. 

The Company has taken adequate measures to conserve energy by 
continuous monitoring and effective use of energy, which is a 
continuous process. 
 
The Company follows a comprehensive approach to encourage 
energy efficiency in its operations starting with continuous 
awareness amongst employees, explaining the environment related 
challenges in business and solutions. 

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for 
utilizing alternate sources of 
energy. 

The Company has a total of four windmills spread across India in the 
states of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, and Rajasthan. The 
Company is taking all possible measures for conservation of energy. 
 

(iii) Capital investments on energy 
saving equipments. 

No capital investments on energy saving equipments were made 
during the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 
 
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 

(i) Efforts made towards technology 
absorption. 

The Company always adopts the latest technology while purchasing the 
plant & machinery. The Company continues to perform R&D activities to 
improve quality of products and to reduce production cost to serve better to 
its customers. 

(ii) Benefits Derived Reduced maintenance time and cost, improved hygienic condition and 
consistency in quality. 
 
Higher productivity, lesser production cost and reduced power. 

(iii) Technology imported during the 
last 3 years: 

Nil 

 Details of technology N.A. 

 Year of Import N.A. 

 Whether the technology fully 
absorbed 

N.A. 

 Areas where absorption has not 
taken place and reason thereof. (If 
not fully absorbed) 

N.A. 

(iv) Expenditure incurred in Research & 
Development during the year. 

Nil 
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 
 

(i) Foreign Exchange Earnings 
(inflows) during the year 2021-22. 

Rs. 101.46 Crores 

(ii) Foreign Exchange Outgo during 
the year 2021-22. 

Rs. 162.96 Crores 

 
 
 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors, 

KN Agri Resources Limited 
 
 
 

Date: November 28, 2022 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Place: Raipur Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
 DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2022 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. On the facts and circumstances of the entity and the audit, that there are no key 
audit matters to communicate. 
 
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include 
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the  standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.  

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of Sub Section (11) of Section 143 of the company Act 2013, we give in the 
Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 
 

2. As required by sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, we report that: 
 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
from our examination of those books; 
 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account; 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and 
 
 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  
 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.  Our report 
expresses unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s Internal 
Financial Controls over financial reporting. 
 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended  
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. 
 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:- 
 

i) the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position 
 
ii) the Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts, hence no 

provision are required for material foreseeable losses; and  
 
iii) There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 
                
iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person 
or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

 
v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

 
For, N. Kumar & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 004110C  

Date: 23.05.2022 
Place: Raipur 

Narendra Kumar Jain 
 (Partner) 

M.No. 073155 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
For the annexure referred to in our report of even date to the Members of KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 
(“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2022; we report that: 
  
1) Property, Plant & Equipment: 

 
(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant & Equipment; 
B. No Intangible Asset has been recognised by the Company. 

 
(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to cover all 
the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books records and the 
physical fixed assets have been noticed. 

 
(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on which building is 
constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in 
respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties 
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in 
the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at 
the balance sheet date.  

 
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and 
intangible assets during the year.  

 
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and 
rules made thereunder.  

 
2) Inventory: 

 
(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals. In the opinion of 
the auditor, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; no discrepancies 
of 10% or more in aggregate for any class of inventory were noticed, moreover the minor discrepancy noticed, if 
any, have been properly dealt with in the books of account. 

 
(b) the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from 
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; Based on our audit procedures and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the quarterly returns or 
statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of 
account of the Company; 
 

3) Loans, Investments, Guarantees, Securities and Advances in nature of Loan: 
 
The Company has made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and granted unsecured 
loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:  
 
(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security 

to any other entity during the year: 
 
(A) the aggregate amount during the year amounted to Rs. 205.85 Crs, and balance outstanding at the 

balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates is NIL;  
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(B)  the aggregate amount during the year amounted to Rs. 29.96 Crs, and balance outstanding at the 

balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other 
than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is Rs. 13.44 Crs; 
 

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, 
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.  

 
(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest 
has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular 
as per stipulation. 
 
(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the 
balance sheet date.  
 
(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or 
fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.  
 
(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is 
not applicable.  
 
The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. 

 
4) Compliance of Section 185 and 186: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and 
security.  
 

5) Deposits: 
The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which are deemed to be deposit from the public and 
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits 
accepted from the public are not applicable.  
 

6) Cost Records: 
Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records 
as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and 
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We 
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete.  
 

7) Statutory Dues 
(a)  In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of 
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities.  
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales  
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tax, Goods & Service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute 
except followings. 
 
S.No. Name of 

Statutory Dues 
Amount of 
Demand/ 
Refund as per 
Demand/ 
Refund Order 

Amount of 
Appeal 

F. Year to 
which the 
Order 
relates 

Authority before whom 
Appeal is pending 

1. Sales Tax (VAT) 25.89 Lacs 25.89 Lacs 2007-08 MP Commercial Tax, Appellant, 
Bhopal 

2. CST 244.60 Lacs 244.60 Lacs 2010-11 MP Commercial Tax, Appellant, 
Bhopal 

3. Sales Tax (VAT) 30.70Lacs 30.70 Lacs 2016-17 MP Commercial Tax, Appellant, 
Bhopal 

4. CST 3.56 Lacs 3.56 Lacs 2016-17 MP Commercial Tax, Appellant, 
Bhopal 

5. Entry Tax 2.44 lacs 2.44 lacs 2016-17 MP Commercial Tax, Appellant, 
Bhopal 

6. Sales Tax (VAT) 1.26 lacs 1.26 lacs 2016-17 MP Commercial Tax, Appellant, 
Bhopal 

7. Income Tax 8.91 lacs 8.91 lacs 2018-19 CIT Appeal  

8. Income Tax 14.75 lacs 14.75 lacs 2017-18 CIT Appeal 

9. Income Tax (TDS) 10.43 lacs 10.43 lacs Various 
years 

Rectification Pending with A.O. 
for TDS demand 

 
8) Unrecorded Income: 

 
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  

 
9) Repayment and Usage of Borrowings: 

 
Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the 
opinion that: 
 
(a) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. 
(b) the company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender; 
(c) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the term loans were applied for the 

purpose for which the loans were obtained; 
(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, 

prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company. 
(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the company has not taken any funds 

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures. 

(f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the company has not raised any loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 
10) Money raised through issue of own shares: 

 
(a) During the year, the Company was listed in SME Platform. Based upon the audit procedures performed and 
the information and explanations given by the management, we report that, moneys raised by way of initial 
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public offer were applied for the purposes for which those are raised. Further, no debt instruments were offered 
during the year. 

 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

11) Fraud: 
 
Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, 
we report that: 
(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year.  
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during 
the year and upto the date of this report.  
(c) No whistle blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of this 
report). 
 

12) Nidhi Company: 
 
In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.  
 

13) Related Party Transactions: 
 
In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.  
 

14) Internal Audit 
 
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business.  
(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the 
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 
 

15) Non-cash transactions with Directors 
 
Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, 
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 
 

16) Registration u/s 45-IA of RBI Act 
 
(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.  
(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable.  
 

17) Cash Losses 
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The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year.  
 

18) Auditor’s Resignation: 
 
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.  
 

19) Financial Position: 
 
On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.  
 

20) CSR Compliance: 
 
(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer to a Fund 
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.  
(b) There are no unspent amounts towards under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant 
to any ongoing project, required to be transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act; 

 
For, N. Kumar & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 004110C  

Date: 23/05/2022 
Place: Raipur 

Narendra Kumar Jain 
 (Partner) 

M.No. 073155 
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  
 
Opinion  
 
In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For, N. Kumar & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 004110C  
Date: 23/05/2022 
Place: Raipur 

Narendra Kumar Jain 
 (Partner) 

M.No. 073155 
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 – Standalone 

       Rs. (in Lakhs) 

 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants,  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 23.05.2022   

PARTICULARS
Note 

No.
2021-22 2020-21

 ASSETS

(1)Non-current assets

(a) Property Plant And Equipment 3 3091.45 3460.48

(b)Right of Use Assets 4 2.93 4.46

(c) Intangible assets _ _

(d) Financial Asset _ _
     (i) Investments 5 2156.25 241.22

     (ii) Loans _ _

     (iii) Other financial assets 6 332.46 330.41

(e) Other non-current assets _ _

Total Non - Current Assets 5583.09 4036.56

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 7 17243.86 7270.64

(b) Financial Assets _ _

     (i) Investments _ _

     (ii) Trade receivables 8 1294.23 3514.07

     (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 3446.61 950.97

     (iv)  Loans 10 265.02 2698.84

     (v)  Other financial assets _ _

(c) Other current assets 11 1437.78 776.60

Total Current Assets 23687.50 15211.12

 (d) Non-Current Assets classified as held for sale 0 0

Total Assets 29270.58 19247.68

 (1) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity Share capital 12 2499.89 1841.49

(b)  Other Equity 13 22981.98 13976.92
Total equity 25481.87 15818.41

LIABILITIES
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 14 13.79 23.94
     (ii) Trade payables _ _
    (iii) Other financial liabilities _ _
(b) Provisions _ _
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 15 146.97 196.43
(d) Other non-current liabilities _ _

Total Non - Current Liabilities 160.76 220.37
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 16 1613.23 2227.55
 (ii) Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 0.00 0.00

 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
 enterprises and small enterprises.] 17

1062.69 533.58

    (iii) Other financial liabilities
(b)  Short Term Provisions 18 247.88 148.66
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 494.09 149.70
(d) Other current liabilities 20 210.06 149.41

Total Current Liabilities 3627.95 3208.90
(e) Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total Equity and Liabilities 29270.58 19247.68
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2022 – Standalone 
 Rs. (in Lakhs) 

 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants,  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 23.05.2022   

  

Particulars Note 2021-22 2020-21

I. Revenue from operations 21 188101.70 129895.49

II. Other Income 22 378.26 223.86

III. Total Income (I +II) 188479.95 130119.34

IV. Expenses:-

Cost of materials consumed 23 37409.60 67813.42

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 24 143970.99 49620.35

Changes in inventories 25 -8952.69 -622.24

Employee benefit expense 26 995.88 685.65

Financial costs 27 193.63 463.72

Depreciation 3 403.63 414.66

Other expenses 28 8088.95 8230.31

Total Expenses 182109.99 126605.88

V. Profit before Tax (III-IV) 6369.96 3513.46

VI. Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax 29 1700.35 974.41

 (2) Deferred tax 15 -49.46 -45.42

 (3) Tax Relating to Prior Years
VII. Profit after Tax (V-VI) 4719.07 2584.46

VIII. Share of (Loss)/Profit in Associates
IX. Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to the profit and loss 
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments 5 10.53 -148.45

Net Change in Fair Value Of Right of use of assets 4 -1.49 0.00
Deferred tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

Income tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
-2.65 37.36

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 6.40 -111.09

IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 4725.47 2473.38

X. Earning per equity share attributable to owners of KN Agri Resources Limited
(1) Basic 18.88 14.03

(2) Diluted 18.88 14.03
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Statement of Cash Flow as on 31st March, 2022 – Standalone 
              Rs. (in Lakhs) 

 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants,  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 23.05.2022   

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 6,369.96                        3,513.46                            
Adjustments for: -                                 -                                     
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 403.63                           414.66                               
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Plant, Property and Equipment -                                 (33.49)                                
Interest Income (300.53)                          (169.05)                              
Financial Cost 193.63                           463.72                               
Change in fair value of gratuity through OCI -                                 -                                     
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,666.69                        4,189.30                            

-                                 -                                     
Changes in Working Capital -                                 -                                     
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable 2,219.84                        (3,134.47)                           
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (9,973.22)                       739.44                               
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (674.28)                          295.66                               
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 529.11                           424.67                               
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 99.22                             54.32                                 
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities -                                 (358.37)                              
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 60.65                             89.55                                 
Cash generated from Operation (1,071.98)                       2,300.11                            

-                                 -                                     
Income Taxes Paid (1,369.93)                       (937.05)                              

-                                 -                                     
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (2,441.91)                       1,363.06                            

-                                 -                                     
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities -                                 -                                     
Purchase of Investment (1,904.50)                       -                                     
Interest Income 300.53                           169.05                               
Receipt from Sale of Plant, Property and Equipment -                                 100.83                               
Payments for Plant, Property and Equipment (34.56)                            (71.17)                                
Other financial Assets (Non Current)(Maturity/(payment) 2.05                               (330.41)                              
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (1,636.48)                       (131.71)                              

-                                 -                                     
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities -                                 -                                     
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share capital 658.40                           -                                     
Increase/(Decrease) in Shares Premium 4,279.60                        -                                     
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Non Current Borrowings 10.16                             (26.31)                                
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances 2,433.82                        (1,706.77)                           
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Borrowings (614.32)                          1,161.85                            
Financial Cost (193.63)                          (463.72)                              
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C) 6,574.03                        (1,034.95)                           

-                                 -                                     
Net Increase /(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 2,495.63                        196.40                               
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 9 950.97                           754.57                               
Add: Effect of Exchange Rate changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents -                                 -                                     
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 9 3,446.60                        950.97                               
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KN Agri Resources Limited 
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
Note 1:  Corporate Information 
The Company was incorporated on 26/03/1197 having its registered office in K.N Building, Subhash Road, 
Ramsagarpara, Raipur, Chhattisgarh State. The Company is into the business of manufacturing of Soya Bean Oil, Soya 
De-Oiled Cake and Soya Refined Oil. The company is also engaged in the business of generation of electricity unit 
through Windmill project and trading of Commodities. The Company has three manufacturing locations and four 
Windmill spread across India. 
 
Note 2:  Significant accounting policies and Explanatory Notes to Reinstated Ind AS Financial Statement 

 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

i. The restated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting under the historical cost 
convention, on a going concern basis, in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian 
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act, to the extent applicable. 
These Accounting Policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with those used in 
the previous year. The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and 
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on 
the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses during the reporting period. The 
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. 

 
ii. Going Concern Concept - The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the premise that its 

business will continue indefinitely.  
 

iii. Use of estimates- The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the recognition and 
measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the company to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent 
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the 
periods presented. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are 
affected. 

iv. Inventory valuation: 
a. RAW Material: - Raw Material is stated at cost. In determining the cost of Raw Materials the FIFO Method is 

used. 
b. Finished Goods: - Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and realizable value.Cost of manufactured 

finished goods includes material cost Labour & factory overheads on the basis full absorption costing.  
c. Stores, Spares And Others: - Stores & Spares and others have been valued at cost. 
 

v. Revenue Recognition - Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefit will flow 
to the Company and that the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances. 

 
vi. Interest Income - Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is 
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
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vii. Employee Benefits- Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratuity, 
leave encashment towards un-availed leave, compensated absences, post-retirement medical benefits and 
other terminal benefits. 

 
viii. Foreign currency transaction: 

 
1. Transactions made during the year in Foreign Currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the 

date of transaction on settlement of transaction. The realized gains and losses on foreign exchange 
transactions are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

2. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the end of 
year are translated at the year-end rate. The resultant exchange rate differences are recognized in the profit 
and loss account. 

3. In case of forward contracts, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate at the date of 
transaction is recognized as income or expense over the contract period.The premium or discount arising at 
inception of the forward contracts on the Foreign Exchange Currency not intended for trading or speculation 
purpose is amortized as expense or income over the life of contract. 

 
ix. Borrowing Costs 

     Borrowing costs attributable to the Tangible Assets during their construction/ renovation and modernization 
are capitalized. Such borrowing costs are apportioned on the average balance of capital work-in-progress for 
the year. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.  

 
x. Taxation - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

Current tax: 
      The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ 

as reported in the Statement of Profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. 

          Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with 
the Income- tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. 
 

Deferred tax: 
 

- Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a 
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of goodwill. 
 

- The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available tallow all or part of the deferred tax asset 
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to 
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered. 

 
- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 
- Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 

other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. 
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- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax asset 

and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and 
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on 
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 

xi. Property plant and equipment  
 

- Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with 
the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 
 

- Freehold land and Assets held for sale are not depreciated. 
 

- Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their residual 
values over their useful lives, using the written down value (WDV) method. The estimated useful lives, residual 
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any 
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation on assets are provided on written 
down value (WDV) method on the gross block at the rates specified in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. Depreciation on additions/deductions to fixed assets is being provided on pro-rata basis from/to the 
month of acquisition/disposal. Full cost of all small and low value items each costing Rs.5000/- or less under all 
class of assets is fully charged to revenue in the year in which the assets are put to use. No part of the cost of 
such items is included in the cost of fixed assets and accordingly no depreciation is charged thereon. 

 
- An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

Type of Assets Useful life (In Years) 
Land – Freehold - 
Buildings  30 
Electrical Installations and Equipments 40 
Plant and Machinery 15/22 
Furniture & Fixtures 10 
Office Equipments 5 
Motor Vehicles 8 
Computers and Data Processing Units 3 

 
xii. Intangible Assets 

          Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less Accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life andamortisation methods are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting year, with the effect ofany changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 
Intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

 
xiii. Impairment of assets: 

Impairment loss is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amounts. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the 
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from 
its disposal at the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from sale of the asset in an 
arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. If at the balance 
sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, then such loss is 
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reversed and the asset is restated to the  extent of the carrying value of the asset that would have 
been determined (net of amortization/  depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognized. 

 
xiv. Pre - paid expenses: 

Expenses pertaining to the subsequent period are accounted as “Pre Paid Expenses”. 
 

xv. Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

 
xvi. Financial Assets 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair 
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

 
xvii. Financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a 
business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
xviii. Investment In Associates 

The investment in associates are carried in the financial statements at historical cost except when the 
investment is classified as held for sale in which case it is accounted for as non -current assets held for sale 
and discontinued operations . 
Investments in subsidiaries carried at cost are tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 28. Any 
impairment loss reduces the carrying value of the investment. 

 
xix. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in 
equity instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are 
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other 
comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the 
investments. 

 
xx. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in 
equity instruments which are not held for trading. 
Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised 
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly 
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attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

 
xxi. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shorttermdeposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificantrisk of changes in value. 

 
xxii. Cash Flow Statement 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set outin the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow. 

 
xxiii. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 

 
Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and 
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the purchase, 
sale, isue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.Financial liabilities 

   All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

xxiv. Earnings per equity share 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of 
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity 
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds 
receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the 
outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the 
period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted 
retrospectively for all periods. 

 
xxv. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the directors of the Company are required to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period 
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together 
with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates are: 
- Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense  
- Estimation of values of contingent liabilities 

Estimates and judgment are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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Note 3 - Property, plant and equipment 
 

 
 
Pledged against CC/OD Limit 
-Pari passu First Charge on entire fixed assets including land situated at Kh. 164/1-4, 165/1, 165/5. Ph. No. 18 (8 Hectare situated at Vill. Siltia, Th Pandhana. dist. East Nimar (MP) but 
excluding charge to term lenders. 
 

Note 4 - Right of Use Assets 
 

 
-The above leasehold land rights pertains to property situated in Kheda Industrial Area, Itarsi. 
Pledged against CC/OD Limit 
'-Paripasu First Charge Land having area of 10 acres in village Kheda Industrial Area, Th Itarsi, Dist. Haushangabad is pledged against CC/OD Limit. 

Description of Assets  Land - Freehold  Buildings 
 Electrical 

Installations 
and Equipment 

 Plant and  
Machinery  

 Plant and 
Machinery 

 Furniture & 
Fixtures 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Motor Vehicles 
 Computers and 
data processing 

units 
 Total 

Useful Life (in Years)                                     30                             40                            22                                 15                            10                       5                               8                                      3 
I. Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 57.79 1138.23 42.83 2401.38 5602.66 83.03 94.67 546.68 32.59 9999.86
Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.85 0.00 0.83 25.63 0.25 34.56
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as on 31st March, 2022 57.79 1138.23 42.83 2401.38 5610.51 83.03 95.50 572.31 32.84 10034.42

II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the year 2021-2022
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 0.00 479.08 21.21 1423.22 4044.16 73.94 82.07 387.90 27.79 6539.38
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year 0.00 36.52 0.77 94.10 233.40 1.71 2.61 32.31 2.18 403.59
Eliminated on disposal of assets 0.00 0.00
Balance as on 31st March, 2022 0.00 515.60 21.99 1517.31 4277.56 75.65 84.68 420.20 29.97 6942.97

Net block  (I-II)
Balance as on 31st March, 2022 57.79 622.63 20.84 884.06 1332.95 7.39 10.82 152.10 2.87 3091.45
Balance as on 31st March, 2021 57.79 659.15 21.61 978.16 1558.50 9.09 12.59 158.78 4.80 3460.48

Leasehold land- Rights 2021-22 2020-21
I. Gross Block
Balance as at beginning of the period 4.46 4.46
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at end of the period 4.46 4.46

0.00 0.00
II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the period
Balance as at beginning of the period 0.00 0.00
Amortisation through OCI 1.49 0.00
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year 0.05 0.00
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at end of the period 1.53 0.00

Net block  (I-II) 2.93 4.46
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Note 5 – Investments 
 

 
 
-Out of the above, Quoted Scripts in three different listed companies have been suspended, thus valuation of those scripts are done as per the last closing value aggregating to Rs. 0.50 Lakhs in above. 
-Change in number of shares is due to issue of bonus shares 
-Quoted & non quoted investments are not held for trading purpose. 
 

Note 6 - Other Financial Assets 
 

 
 

Note 7 – Inventories 
 

 

 QTY  QTY 
 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT COST
1.Quoted Investment (fully paid)
Investment in Equity Instrument 1.69 165.56 1.50 165.56

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments of Associates 

Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited (Associate) 141.09 224.10 2.65 0.00 224.10
BLUEBRAHMA CLEAN ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 138.45

1904.50

Total Investment (Cost) 281.23 2294.16 4.14 389.66
Opening Impairment value of investment -148.45
Less- Net change in fair value of investment during 
the year

10.53 -148.45

Investment Carried at FVTOCI 281.23 2156.25 4.14 241.22

Of the above, investments designated as FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Of the above, investments held for trading 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other investments carried at FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 281.23 0.00 2156.25 4.14 0.00 241.22

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 281.23 0.00 2156.25 4.14 0.00 241.22

31-03-2021
 Amounts  Amounts 

Particular 31-03-2022

Particular 2021-22 2020-21
Non Current
Security Deposits
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 332.46 330.41
Others(to be specified);
Total Other Financial Asset 332.46 330.41

2021-22 2020-21
2127.49 1164.63

14442.08 5489.40
674.28 616.61

Total 17243.86 7270.64

Finished Goods
Stores and Spares 

Particulars 
Raw Material 
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-During the year ended March 31, 2022 the shares of company were listed in SME Platform and 65.84 Lakhs equity shares were issued. 
-During the year ended March 31, 2021, face value of shares has been splitted into Rs. 10/- per share from Rs. 1000/- per share. 
-During the year ended March 31, 2021, company has issued the bonus shares in Ratio of 139:10 shares and total no. of 17179010 shares has 
been issued as a bonus shares. 
 

NOTE 8 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
Secured, Considered Good 

Unsecured, Considered Good 1294.23 3514.07

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
1294.23 3514.07

Less: Allowances for Doubtful Debts 
1294.23 3514.07

Categorization of Trade Receivables

1. Undisputed Trade Receivables, Considered Good 1277.40 3514.07
2. Undisputed Trade Receivables, Considered Doubtful 0.00 0.00
3. Disputed Trade Receivables, Considered Good 16.83 0.00
4. Disputed Trade Receivables, Considered Doubtful 0.00 0.00

Total 1294.23 3514.07
Trade Receivable are non interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 0 to 90 days.

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
less than 6 Months 1276.37 3496.21
6 Months - 1 year 0.00 17.86
1 - 2 Years 17.86 0.00
2 - 3 Years 0.00 0.00
More than 3 years 0.00 0.00
Total 1294.23 3514.07

NOTE 9 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
(Measured at amortised cost, except otherwise stated)

Cash in Hand 111.05 45.04

Balances with Banks 3280.56 905.93

Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months

- With Banks 55.00 0.00

- With Financial Institutions 0.00 0.00

3446.61 950.97

NOTE 10 : SHORT TERM LOANS

Advance for Materials & Services 242.99 2438.78

Loans & Advance to Others 0.00 257.18

Advance to Staff & Labours 22.03 2.88

265.02 2698.84
NOTE 11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Security Deposits 664.59 167.20

Prepaid Ins./Lease rent/Expenses 113.66 74.39

Advance Tax and TDS 0.00 0.00

GST/Mandi Tax Refund Receivable 244.41 67.01

Interest Receivable 57.84 51.45

Other Current Assets/Receivables 357.29 416.55

1437.78 776.60

NOTE 12 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised 3000.00 3000.00

3,00,00,000 Equity Share Of Rs. 10

a.Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Opening Equity 1841.49 123.59

18414910 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

P.Y 12359 Equity shares of Rs. 1000 each

Shares issued during the year 658.40 0.00

Add:- Bouns Shares Issued 0.00 1717.90

Equity Shares 2499.89 1841.49

24998910 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

P.Y 18414910 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
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Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares
Name of Share Holder No of Share  % of Share No of Share  % of Share
Anant Trafina Private Limited 5685840            22.74% 5685840             30.87%
KN Resources Private Limited 4470000           17.88% 4470000             24.27%
Anant Countertrade Private Limited 5721600            22.89% 5721600              31.07%

Smt Sushila Devi Shrishrimal 0                            0.00% 1306730                7.10%

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

-Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

NOTE 13 : OTHER EQUITY

Reserve & Surplus

Retained Earnings

O/Balance of Profit & loss A/c 13976.92 13221.44

Add: Profit during the year 4719.07 2584.47

Other Comprehensive Income 6.40 -111.09

Less:- Utilised for Issue of  Bouns Shares 0.00 -1717.90

Closing Balance 18702.38 13976.92

Share Premium A/c

Opening Balance 0.00 0.00

Addition During the year 4279.60 0.00

Closing Balance 4279.60 0.00

Total 22981.98 13976.92

NOTE 14 : LONG TERM BORROINGS

Secured Loan

 Vehicle Loan From Bank 13.79 23.94

(secured against vehicle)
13.79 23.94

Unsecured Loan

Inter Corporate Deposits 0.00 0.00

13.79 23.94

Details of vehicle loans from bank

Bank Name Type Of LoanSanction Date Sanction Amount

UCO Bank - Raipur Term Loan 23.07.2019 47.43
Note 15 - Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Opening Deferred Tax Laibilities (Net) 196.43 241.85

Impact of Timing difference -49.46 -45.42

Closing Deferred Tax Laibilities (Net) 146.97 196.43

NOTE 16: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loan:-

Loan from Banks( CC / EPC/LC /WCDL/WHR)

Export Packing Credit 0.00 0.00

Cash Credit 1603.07 2217.96

Pledge loan (WHR) 0.00 0.00

Current maturities of Long term borrowing (vehicle loan) 10.16 9.58

1613.23 2227.55

-During the period ended 31st March, 2022 , the amount of per share dividend recognised as 
distribution to equity 
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Details of Sanctioned Limits: 

 
 
Security for CC/EPC/LC Loans: 
17.1 - Primary : Paripassu First Charge on Inventory cum Book debts/ Current Assets excl. Pledged stock both present & Future 
for Working Capital Limits Collateral:  Paripasu First Charge on entire Fixed Assets excluding windmill & vehicle incl. Land situated 
at Kh. 164/1-4, 165/1, 165/5. Ph. No. 18 (8 Hectare situated at Vill. Siltia, Th Pandhana. dist. East Nimar (MP) & Land having area 
of 10 acres in village Kheda Industrial Area, Th Itarsi, Dist. Haushangabad (excl Charge to Term Lenders) 
 
Security for WHR loan: 
'17.2  Pledge of Underlying Stocks for which WHR has been issued with exclusive Lien marked in favour of the Bank. 
 

 
 

Particulars Sanction 
Limit

 CC/EPC/LC Limits Rs. in 
lakhs

- Union Bank of India (Erst Corp. Bank) 3000

- SBI 3000

- Yes Bank 3000

- HDFC 2000

- IDBI 1500

WHR Limits

- SBI 2500

0.00 0.00

1062.69 533.58

TOTAL 1062.69 533.58

Reconciliation of Trade Payables
1. MSME (Undisputed) 0.00 0.00

2. Others (Undisputed) 1062.69 533.58

3. MSME (Disputed) 0.00 0.00

4. Others (Disputed) 0.00 0.00

Total 1062.69 533.58

Reconciliation of Trade Payables
less than 12 Months 1004.81

1 - 2 Years 57.88

2 - 3 Years 0.00

More than 3 years 0.00

Total 1062.69

NOTE 18 : SHORT TERM PROVISION

Provisions 29.09 6.07

Brokerage Payable 60.47 44.02

Expense Payable 96.24 62.93

Audit Fees Payable 1.04 2.13

Other Liabilities 47.53 7.55

MPEB Payable 13.52 25.97

247.88 148.66

NOTE 19 : CURRENT TAX  LIABILITIES( NET)

Provision for Income Tax 494.09 149.70
494.09 149.70

NOTE 20 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

TDS/TCS Payable 143.43 62.16

SGST/IGST/CGST tax Payable 40.96 57.11

Statutory Dues EPF 4.78 5.46

ESI 0.75 0.79

Security deposit from contractor 20.14 23.89

210.06 149.41

(a) Total outstanding dues of MSME 
(b) Total outstanding dues other (a) above 

Note 17 - Trade Payables 
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PARTICULARS

NOTE 21 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Agri Commodities 187931.60 129779.78

Power Generation 170.10 115.70

Total 188101.70 129895.49

NOTE 22 : OTHER INCOME

Other income 77.13 21.31

Dividend 0.60 0.00

Interest Income 300.53 169.05

Profit on sale of Assets 0.00 33.49

378.26 223.86
NOTE 23:MATERIAL CONSUMED 

Opening Stock 1164.63 2601.55

Add: Purchase 38372.47 66376.51
39537.10 68978.05

Less: Closing Stock 2127.49 1164.63

Consumption 37409.60 67813.42

NOTE 24 : PURCHASE-TRADE STOCK 

Agri Commodities 143970.99 49620.35

Total 143970.99 49620.35

NOTE 25 : CHANGES-INVENTORIES 

Agri Commodities

Opening Stock 5489.40 4867.15

Closing stock 14442.08 5489.40

Increase/ Decrease in Stock -8952.69 -622.24

NOTE 26 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salary, Allowances,  & Training 926.54 637.74

Gratuity 31.07 11.23

Company Contribution to PF 30.68 29.35

Company Contribution to ESI 7.59 7.33

995.88 685.65

NOTE 27 : FINANCIAL COSTS

Interest on Working Capital 121.04 418.43

Interest on Others 0.77 0.80

Bank Charges / ECGC 71.82 44.50

193.63 463.72

NOTE 28 : OTHER EXPENSES
Direct Expenses

Consumables 819.85 1334.47

Consumption of Packing Material 872.94 1153.24

Power charges 588.52 850.12

Repair & Maintenance 308.87 322.28

Custom Duties 1316.87 0.00

Other Manufacturing Expenses 2.96 5.57

3910.02 3665.69

KN Agri Resources Limited 
(Formally known as KN Agri Resources Private Limited/ Itarsi Oils and Flours Private Limited)

Schedule annexed to and forming part of the Profit & Loss as at 31 March 22
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Indirect Expenses

Office & General Expenses 103.78 95.64

Office Rent 92.52 125.35

Travelling 135.89 66.16

Foreign Travelling 8.94 7.30

Vehicle Expenses 47.58 38.80

Printing & Stationery 3.64 4.18

Computer Expenses 3.01 1.80

License Fees 5.96 8.52

Legal/Professional Expenses 97.96 77.10

Communication Expenses 5.22 5.50

Insurance 67.58 46.17

Advertisement 1.25 1.70

Charity & Donation 2.81 2.54

Expenses CSR 167.00 20.00

Interest on Income Tax/TDS/TCS 0.48 7.29

Interest on  Income Tax Earlier Year 27.71 0.00

Entry Tax & Sales tax 1.32 0.65

Membership Fees 3.07 2.83

Balances w/off -0.33 -0.11
Bad debts 14.19 0.00
IPO Expenses 356.43 0.00

Rates & Professional Taxes/Service 12.90 2.50

Interest on Delay Indirect Taxes/Duty 0.17 11.85

Windmill Expenses 30.60 29.67

Auditor Remuneration 2.30 2.30

Freight & Rebate 865.62 1465.60

Selling & Distribution Expenses 2035.40 2432.84

Godown Rent 78.38 102.50

Sales  Tax (VAT/CST & ET )Earlier Year 0.00 1.84

GST Expense 7.56 4.10

4178.93 4564.63

8088.95 8230.31

NOTE 29 : Current Tax 

PARTICULARS Note No.

 (1) Current tax 1700.35 974.41

 (2) Deferred tax -49.46 -45.42

Total 1650.89 929.00
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30. During the year, Company was listed in SME Platform. In respect of Equity Shares issued during the year, 
moneys raised by way of initial public offer were applied for the purposes for which those were raised.  

 
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 
i) Related Parties  
 

Key Management Personnel 

1 Vijay Shrishrimal (Director) 

2 Sanjay Shrishrimal (Director) 

3 Dhirendra Shrishrimal (Director) 

4 Akshat Sharma (Company Secretary) 

Promoters 

1 KN Resources Private Limited 

2 Anant Countertrade Private Limited 

3 Anant Trafina Private Limited 

4 Vijay Shrishrimal  

5 Sanjay Shrishrimal  

6 Dhirendra Shrishrimal  

Director having substantial interest in the Entity 

1 Anant Infrastructures Private Limited 

2 KN Infratech Private Limited 

3 KN Solvent & Vanaspati Private Limited 

4 Palak Exim Private Limited 

5 Salahkar Distributors Private Limited 

6 Vijay Kumar & Co. 

Director along with relatives having substantial 
interest in the Entity 

1 Anant Ventures 

2 Cking Infrastructure 

3 Mahavir Dal Mill 

Company Having Substantial Interest 1 Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited 

 2 Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited 

Other Non- executive director 
1 Pradeep Kumar Totla 

2 Poonam Rishi Pilani 
3 Gopal Krishan Sood 

 
 
ii) Revenue Transactions during the year with related parties: 
 

KMP: 
 

S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount  
(Rs. In Lakh.) 

10 Sanjay Shrishrimal Director Salary 120.00 
11 Dhirendra Shrishrimal  Director Salary 120.00 
12. Vijay Shrishrimal Director Salary 120.00 
13. Vijay Shrishrimal Rent 24.00 
14. Sanjay Shrishrimal Rent  24.00 
15. Dhirendra Shrishrimal  Rent  24.00 

 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                  59 

Promoters 
 

S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount  
(Rs. In Lakh.) 

1. K N Resources Private Limited Sale Non Performance 26.00 
2. K N Resources Private Limited PP Bags Purchases 14.00 
3. K N Resources Private Limited Gunny Bags Sale  03.00 
4 K N Resources Private Limited Maize Sale 468.00 
5. K N Resources Private Limited Gram Sale 63.00 
6. K N Resources Private Limited Soyabean Sale 18.00 
7. K N Resources Private Limited Soya Doc Purchase 178.00 
8 K N Resources Private Limited Degum Oil Purchase 3521.00 
9. K N Resources Private Limited Gunny Bags Purchases 13.00 
10. K N Resources Private Limited Interest Income  115.00 

 
Director having substantial interest in the Entity 

 

S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount  
(Rs. In Lakhs.) 

1. Anant Trafina Private Limited Data Processing 10.00 
2. Anant Trafina Private Limited Gram Sale 61.00 
3 Palak Exim Private Limited Interest Income 84.00 

 
Director along with relatives having substantial interest in the Entity 

 

S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount  
(Rs. In Lakhs.) 

1 Mahaveer Dall Mill Soya Husk Purchase 16.00 
2. Mahaveer Dall Mill Cattle Feed Purchase 104.00 
3. Mahaveer Dall Mill Maize Purchase 2.00 

 
Company Having Substantial Interest 

 

S.No. Name of the party Relation Nature of 
transaction 

Amount 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 
 

1 Raipur Mega Food Park Private 
Limited 

Associate  Interest Expense 7.00 

 
iii) Loan Transactions during the year with related parties: 

(Figure in Lakhs) 
Loan Granted: 
Sno Related 

Party 
Category Relation Opening 

Balance 
Loan/ 
Advance 
Granted 

Loan 
Refunded 

Closing 
Balance 

Percentage to the 
Total Loans/ 
Advances in the 
nature of Loan 

1 K N 
Resources 
Private 
Limited 

Promoter Director having 
substantial 
interest in the 
Entity 

- 20585.09 20585.09 - - 

2 Palak Exim 
Private 
Limited 

Other than 
Promotor 

Director having 
substantial 
interest in the 
Entity 

1705.85 2996.14 4701.99 - - 
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Loan Taken 
 

S.no Related Party Category Relation Opening 
Balance 

Loan taken Loan Repaid Closing 
Balance 

1 Raipur Mega 
Food Park 

Others Company 
Having 
Substantial 
Interest 

- 293.50 293.50 - 

 
Investment Made 
 

S.no Related Party Category Relation Opening 
Balance 

Investment 
Made 

Closing 
Balance 

1 Bluebrahma 
Clean Energy 
Solutions 
Private Limited 

Others Company 
Having 
Substantial 
Interest 

- 1904.50 
(13845000 Nos. 
of equity share 
of Rs.10 each) 

1904.50 
(13845000 
Nos. of 
equity 
share of 
Rs.10 each) 

 
 

32. Promoter Share Holding 

NAME OF PROMOTER No of share as on  
March 31, 2022 

No of share as on  
March 31, 2021 

% of Total 
Share as on  
March 31, 

2022 

% of Total 
Share as on  
March 31, 

2021 

% Change 
During the 

year 

Vijay Shrishrimal 845327 409750 3.38% 2.23% 1.16% 

Sushila Devi Shrishrimal 0 1306730 0.00% 7.10% -7.10% 

Sanjay Shrishrimal 845327 409750 3.38% 2.23% 1.16% 

Dhirendra Shrishrimal 845326 409750 3.38% 2.23% 1.16% 

Anant Trafina Pvt. Ltd. 5685840 5685840 22.74% 30.88% -8.13% 

K.N. Resources Pvt. Ltd. 4470000 4470000 17.88% 24.27% -6.39% 

Anant Countertrade Pvt. Ltd. 5721600 5721600 22.89% 31.07% -8.18% 

 
33. Details regarding capacities, production, Stocks and sale of manufactured goods: 

Qty in MT 

Particulars As on 31/03/2022 As on 31/03/2021 

   
Registered  
Capacity (p.a.) 

 
 
 

Installed  
 Capacity  

(p.a.) 

Registered  
Capacity 

(p.a.) 

Installed  
Capacity 

(p.a.) 
    
1. Solvent Extraction of OIL / OIL Cake     
Itarsi 150000.00  150000.00  150000.00  150000.00  
Khandwa unit-1 120000.00  120000.00  120000.00  120000.00  

Khandwa unit-2 105000.00  105000.00  105000.00  105000.00  
 
 
     
2. Refined vegetable Oil      
Itarsi 30000.00  30000.00  30000.00  30000.00 
Khandwa 15000.00  15000.00  15000.00  15000.00  
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3. Flour Mill      

Flour Mill 21000.00  21000.00  21000.00  21000.00  
 
4. Wind Mill      
Wind Mill Nagda -Dewas-MP  1.25  1.25  1.25  1.25  
Wind Mill Nandurbar-MS  1.25  1.25  1.25  1.25  
Wind Mill  Sangali- MS  0.60  0.60  0.60  0.60  
Wind Mill  Akal-RAJ 1.50  1.50  1.50  1.50  
        

 (Installed Capacity is certified by the Directors and not verified by the Auditors, as it is a Technical Matter 
& Being accepted by the Auditors.) 
 

34. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS : 
 

PARTICULARS AMOUNT 
31.03.2022 

AMOUNT 
31.03.2021 

Audit Fees 230000/- 230000/- 
 

35. THE COMPUTATION OF BASIC/DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE : 
            

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Profit for the year after taxation (Rs.) 471906948 258446465 
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares Basic  24998910 18414910 
Basic Per Share (Rs.) 18.88 14.03 

  
 
 

36. Additional Information pursuant to Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 r.w. 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 

 
S.No. Particulars 2021-22  2020-21 
A. Value of Imports on C.I.F. Basis (Rs. in lac) $21688961.05 

16296.52 
- 

B. Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rs. in lac)  - 
C. Value of export on CIF basis($) 

(Rs in lac.) 
 
$11077532  
10146.17 

 
$7569943.64  
5527.34 

 
37. DETAILS ON GRATUITY INFORMATION  

 
A. The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised 

in the Group's financial statements as at 31/03/22 : 
 

1: Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations: 

                                                (Rs. In lakhs) 

Period From: 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022 From: 01-04-2020 To 31-03-2021 

Present value of the obligation at the 
beginning of the period 

199.69 183.82 
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Interest cost 13.47 12.87 

Current service cost 9.10 8.47 

Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 

Benefits paid (if any) -9.95 -9.77 

Actuarial (gain)/loss -2.95 4.30 

Present value of the obligation at the end 
of the period 

209.37 199.69 

 
2: Key results (The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet): 
 

Period As on: 31-03-2022 As on: 31-03-2021 

Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 209.37 199.69 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 180.33 166.79 

Net liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 29.03 32.90 

Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit)  -29.03 -32.90 

 
3: Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss: 

 

Period 
From: 01-04-2021 To 31-

03-2022 
From: 01-04-2020 To 31-

03-2021 

Interest cost 13.48 12.87 

Current service cost 9.10 8.47 

Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 

Expected return on plan asset -11.25 -11.23 

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the period -2.50 5.22 

Expenses to be recognized in P&L 8.82 15.33 

 
4: Table showing changes in the Fair Value of Planned Assets: 
 

Period From: 01-04-2021 To 
31-03-2022 

From: 01-04-2020 To  
31-03-2021 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 166.79 160.38 

Expected return on plan assets 11.26 11.23 
Contributions 12.68 5.88 
Benefits paid -9.95 -9.77 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets -0.45 -0.92 

Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the Period 180.33 166.79 

 
38. No provision has been made for leave encasement. It is explained to us that the above expense are debited 

in books on cash basis. 
 

39. All the Immovable Property are held in the name of Company. 
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40. The Company has disclosed investment at cost /market value which ever is less. 

 
41. During the Year Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets). 

 
42. During the Year Company has not revalued its intangible assets. 

 
43. Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) No Capital- Work-n Progress as on March 31, 2022. 

 
44. No  Intangible assets under development 

 
45. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 

2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 
2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 

46. The Company was not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 
 

47. As per the available records, the Company does not have any transaction with the Companies which are 
Struck off as per Sec 248 Companies Act 2013 or Sec 560 of Companies Act 1956. 
 

48. Charge with respect to Vehicle Loan amounting to Rs. 43.00 Lakhs was not registered since same was not 
required by the Lender. Further Charges amounting to Rs. 3443.77 Lakhs could not be satisfied due non 
granting of Loan closure letter pursuant to demerger of the Lender. 
 

49. As on date the company does not have any subsidiary company as defined under clause (87) of section 2 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, since the Compliance with number of layers of companies in not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

50. As on date company has not entered in Scheme(s) of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 
 

51. Company has utilized the Borrowed Funds and share premium for the purpose for which it is raised. 
 

52. As on date company does not have any share application money pending for allotment. 
 

53. Company has not issued any preference share or convertible securities.   
 

54. Disclosure related Consolidated Financial Statement: 
The Company holds Investment (less than 51%) in Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited. since no operation 
have commenced as yet and looking to the materiality, the management does not find it material to have 
any impact in Consolidated Financial Statement. 
 
Further on 29th March 2022, the Company has made Investment (less than 51%) in Bluebrahma Clean 
Energy Solutions Private Limited. Since it has no revenue from its operations and looking to the materiality, 
the management does not find it material to have any impact in Consolidated Financial Statement.  
 

55. The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021: 
 
 

Particulars Numerator 

Amount as at (Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

Denominator 

Amount as at (Rs. in 
Lakhs)  Ratio as at  

31-03-
2022 

31-03-
2021 

31-03-
2022 

31-03-
2021 

31-03-
2022 

31-03-
2021 Variance 

Current Ratio Current assets 23687.50 15211.12 
Current 
liabilities 3627.95 3208.90 6.53 4.74 38% 

Debt Equity Ratio 

Total Debt 
(represent 
lease 
liabilities) 1627.01 2251.49 

Shareholder's 
Equity 25481.87 15818.41 0.06 0.14 -55% 
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Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio 

Earnings 
available for 
debt service  NA NA Debt Service NA NA NA NA NA 

Return On Equity 
Ratio 

Net profits 
after taxes 4719.07 2584.46 

Average 
Shareholder's 
Equity 25481.87 15818.41 18.52 16.34 13% 

Inventory Turnover 
ratio 

Cost of goods 
sold 172427.91 116811.53 

Average 
Inventory 12257.25 7640.36 14.07 15.29 -8% 

Trade Receivable 
Turnover Ratio Revenue 188101.70 129895.49 

Average 
Trade 
Receivable 2404.15 1946.84 78.24 66.72 17% 

Trade Payable 
Turnover Ratio 

Purchase of 
services and 
other 
expenses 182343.46 115996.86 

Average 
Trade 
Payables 798.14 321.25 228.46 361.09 -37% 

Net Capital Turnover 
Ratio Revenue 188101.70 129895.49 

Working 
Capital 20059.54 12002.22 9.38 10.82 -13% 

Net Profit Ratio Net profit 4719.07 2584.46 Revenue 188479.95 130119.34 2.50 1.99 26% 

Return on Capital 
Employed 

Earnings 
before interest 
and taxes 6563.59 3977.18 

Capital 
Employed 25495.66 15842.35 25.74 25.10 3% 

Return On 
Investment/Total 
Assets 

Net profits 
after taxes 4719 2584 Total Assets 29271 19248 16.12 13.43 20% 

 
56. Segment Information- 

 
I. Revenue from operations 

      (Rs. In lakhs) 
 Activity wise  

       
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Agro Product 187931.60 129779.78 
Power  170.09 115.70 
Total 188101.69 129895.49 
 

 Geographical location wise 
 
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Sale of Product   
-Outside India 10146.17 6577.85 
-Within India 177785.43 123201.94 
Sale of Power(Within India) 170.09 115.70 

Total 188101.69 129895.49 
 

II. Non Current operating asset 
All the non current asset of the group are located in India. 

 
III. The group does not have revenue from transactions with a single external customer, amount to 

10% of the total revenue. 
 
57. MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES 

 
As per the information available with the Company, the Company does not owe any dues (principal as 
well interest) as at 31st March 2022 to Micro, Small & Medium enterprises. Company had paid all dues 
according the provisions under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The amount 
of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
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Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year –Nil 
 

58. Corporate Social Responsibility 
 

As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, a company meeting the applicability of threshold, needs to 
spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities. The Areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger 
and malnutrition, promoting education, art& culture, health care, destitute care and rehabilitation, 
environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development project. A CSR committee is formed by 
the company as per the act.  

 
Disclosure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

                         (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particular March 31, 
2022 

March 31, 
2021 

a. amount required to be spent by the company during the year  57.06 46.52 
b. amount of expenditure incurred:  167.00 20.00 
c. Excess amount Spent:  109.94 Nil 
d. Amount adjusted towards previous year’s shortfall:  109.11 Nil 
e. Surplus amount carry forward by the Company:  0.83 Nil 
f. shortfall at the end of the year:  Nil 26.52 
g. total of previous years shortfall:  Nil 82.58 

h. reason for shortfall:  N.A. 

Unable to 
ascertain 
and identify 
appropriate 
projects. 

i. nature of CSR activities:  

Promoting 
Education 
and 
eradicating 
hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition. 

Promoting 
Education 

j. details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per 
relevant Accounting Standard:  

N.A. N.A. 

k. where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the 
provision during the year should be shown separately: 

N.A. N.A. 

 
59. Crypto Currency Transaction during the year NIL. 

 
60. Previous year’s figure have been regrouped, rearranged and recast where ever it is   necessary.  
 
61. Note no. 1 to 60 forms an integral part of Financial Statement.  
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As per our report of even date annexed 
For, N. Kumar & Co. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Chartered Accountants,  
Firm regn no. 004110C  
 Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
 Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
N.K. Jain DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
(Partner)  
M.No. 073155  
 Akshat Sharma 
 Company Secretary  
Raipur  
Date: 23.05.2022  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED (“the 
Company”) and its associates, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements, the aforesaid Consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. On the facts and circumstances of the entity and the audit, that there is no key 
audit matters to communicate. 
 
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include 
the Standalone financial statements, Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.  

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
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are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.  
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  
 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
a. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we 
report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in respect of the consolidated financial statement. 

b. As required by sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, we report that: 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

c. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears 
from our examination of those books; 
 

d. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account; 

 
e. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and 
 

f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  
 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.  Our report 
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expresses unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s Internal 
Financial Controls over financial reporting. 
 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. 
 

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:- 
 
i) the Company does not have any major pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

 
ii) the Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts, hence no provision 

are required for material foreseeable losses; and  
 
iii) There is no amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 
                
iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

 
(b)   The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any 
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

 
v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 
 
 

For, N. Kumar & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 004110C  
Date: 28.11.2022 
Place: Raipur 

Narendra Kumar Jain 
 (Partner) 

M.No. 073155 
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  
 
Opinion  
 
In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
 

For, N. Kumar & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 004110C  
Date: 28.11.2022 
Place: Raipur 

Narendra Kumar Jain 
 (Partner) 

M.No. 073155 
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 – Consolidated 

(With its associates Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited and Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited) 

                                                                                                                                 Rs. (in Lakhs) 

 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants,  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 28.11.2022   

PARTICULARS
Note 
No.

2021-22 2020-21

 ASSETS

(1)Non-current assets

(a) Porperty Plant And Equipment 3 3091.45 3460.48

(b)Right of Use Assets 4 2.93 4.46

(c) Intangible assets 

(d) Financial Asset
     (i) Investments 5 2155.75 241.22

     (ii) Loans
     (iii) Other financial assets 6 332.46 330.41

(e) Other non-current assets

Total Non - Current Assets 5582.59 4036.56

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 7 17243.86 7270.64

(b) Financial Assets 
     (i) Investments
     (ii) Trade receivables 8 1294.23 3514.07

     (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 3446.61 950.97

     (iv)  Loans 10 265.02 2698.84

     (v)  Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets 11 1437.78 776.60

Total Current Assets 23687.50 15211.12

 (d) Non-Current Assets classified as held for sale 0 0

Total Assets 29270.08 19247.68

 (1) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(a) Equity Share capital 12 2499.89 1841.49

(b)  Other Equity 13 22981.48 13976.92
Total equity 25481.37 15818.41

LIABILITIES
(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 14 13.79 23.94
     (ii) Trade payables
    (iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 15 146.97 196.43
(d) Other non-current liabilities

Total Non - Current Liabilities 160.76 220.37
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
     (i) Borrowings 16 1613.23 2227.55
 (ii) Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises; and

0.00 0.00

 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
 enterprises and small enterprises.] 17

1062.69 533.58

    (iii) Other financial liabilities
(b)  Short Term Provisions 18 247.88 148.66
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 494.09 149.70
(d) Other current liabilities 20 210.06 149.41

Total Current Liabilities 3627.95 3208.90
(e) Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total Equity and Liabilities 29270.08 19247.68
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2022 – Consolidated 
(With its associates ‘Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited’ and ‘Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited’) 

 Rs. (in Lakhs) 

 

 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants,  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 28.11.2022   

 

Particulars Note 2021-22 2020-21

I. Revenue from operations 21 188101.70 129895.49

II. Other Income 22 378.26 223.86

III. Total Income (I +II) 188479.95 130119.34

IV. Expenses:-

Cost of materials consumed 23 37409.60 67813.42

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 24 143970.99 49620.35

Changes in inventories 25 -8952.69 -622.24

Employee benefit expense 26 995.88 685.65

Financial costs 27 193.63 463.72

Depreciation 3 403.63 414.66

Other expenses 28 8088.95 8230.31

Total Expenses 182109.99 126605.88

V. Profit before Tax (III-IV) 6369.96 3513.46

VI. Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax 29 1700.35 974.41

 (2) Deferred tax 15 -49.46 -45.42

 (3) Tax Relating to Prior Years
VII. Profit after Tax (V-VI) 4719.07 2584.46

VIII. Share of (Loss)/Profit in Associates -0.50 0.0

IX. Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to the profit and loss 
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments 5 10.53 -148.45

Net Change in Fair Value Of Right of use of assets 4 -1.49 0.00

Deferred tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit and loss
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit and loss

-2.65 37.36

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 6.40 -111.09

IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 4724.97 2473.38

X. Earning per equity share attributable to owners of KN Agri 
Resources Limited
(1) Basic 18.88 14.03

(2) Diluted 18.88 14.03
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Statement of Cash Flow as on 31st March, 2022 – Consolidated 
(With its associates ‘Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited’ and ‘Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited’) 

             Rs. (in Lakhs) 

 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants,  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 28.11.2022   

PARTICULARS 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 6,369.96                        3,513.46                            
Adjustments for: -                                 -                                     
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 403.63                           414.66                               
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Plant, Property and Equipment -                                 (33.49)                                
Interest Income (300.53)                          (169.05)                              
Financial Cost 193.63                           463.72                               
Change in fair value of gratuity through OCI -                                 -                                     
Operating profit before working capital changes 6,666.69                        4,189.30                            

-                                 -                                     
Changes in Working Capital -                                 -                                     
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable 2,219.84                        (3,134.47)                           
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (9,973.22)                       739.44                               
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (674.28)                          295.66                               
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 529.11                           424.67                               
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 99.22                             54.32                                 
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities -                                 (358.37)                              
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 60.65                             89.55                                 
Cash generated from Operation (1,071.98)                       2,300.11                            

-                                 -                                     
Income Taxes Paid (1,369.93)                       (937.05)                              

-                                 -                                     
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (2,441.91)                       1,363.06                            

-                                 -                                     
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities -                                 -                                     
Purchase of Investment (1,904.50)                       -                                     
Interest Income 300.53                           169.05                               
Receipt from Sale of Plant, Property and Equipment -                                 100.83                               
Payments for Plant, Property and Equipment (34.56)                            (71.17)                                
Other financial Assets (Non Current)(Maturity/(payment) 2.05                               (330.41)                              
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (1,636.48)                       (131.71)                              

-                                 -                                     
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities -                                 -                                     
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share capital 658.40                           -                                     
Increase/(Decrease) in Shares Premium 4,279.60                        -                                     
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Non Current Borrowings 10.16                             (26.31)                                
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances 2,433.82                        (1,706.77)                           
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Borrowings (614.32)                          1,161.85                            
Financial Cost (193.63)                          (463.72)                              
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C) 6,574.03                        (1,034.95)                           

-                                 -                                     
Net Increase /(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 2,495.63                        196.40                               
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 9 950.97                           754.57                               
Add: Effect of Exchange Rate changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents -                                 -                                     
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 9 3,446.60                        950.97                               
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KN Agri Resources Limited 
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022. 
(With its associates ‘Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited’ and ‘Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited’) 

 
Note 1: Corporate Information 
 
The Company was incorporated on 26/03/1197 having its registered office in K.N Building, Subhash Road, 
Ramsagarpara, Raipur, Chhattisgarh State..The Company is into the business of manufacturingof Soya Bean Oil, 
Soya De-Oiled Cake and Soya Refined Oil. The company is also engaged in the business of generation of electricity 
unit through Windmill project and trading of Commodities. The Company has three manufacturing locations and 
four Windmill spread across India. 

 
Note 2: Significant accounting policies and Explanatory Notes to Reinstated Ind AS Consolidated Financial 

Statement 
 
 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

i. The restated consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting under the 
historical cost convention, on a going concern basis, in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act, 
to the extent applicable. These Accounting Policies have been consistently applied by the Company and 
are consistent with those used in the previous year. The preparation of consolidated financial statements 
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported income and expenses during the reporting period. The Management 
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. 

 
ii. Going Concern Concept - The consolidated financial statements of the company have been prepared on 

the premise that its business will continue indefinitely.  
 

iii. Use of estimates- The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the 
recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the company to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating 
to contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts 
of income and expense for the periods presented. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates 
are revised and future periods are affected. 

 
iv. Inventory valuation: 

 
a. RAW Material: - Raw Material is stated at cost. In determining the cost of Raw Materials the FIFO Method 

is used. 
 
b. Finished Goods: - Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and realizable value.Cost of 

manufactured finished goods includes material cost Labour& factory overheads on the basis full 
absorption costing.  

 
c. Stores, Spares And Others: - Stores & Spares and others have been valued at cost. 

 
v. Revenue Recognition - Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefit will 

flow to the Company and that the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
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value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated rebates and other 
similar allowances. 

 
vi. Interest Income - Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 
vii. Employee Benefits- Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratuity, 

leave encashment towards un-availed leave, compensated absences, post-retirement medical benefits 
and other terminal benefits. 

 
viii. Foreign currency transaction: 

 
1. Transactions made during the year in Foreign Currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at 

the date of transaction on settlement of transaction. The realized gains and losses on foreign exchange 
transactions are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

2. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the end 
of year are translated at the year-end rate. The resultant exchange rate differences are recognized in 
the profit and loss account. 

3. In case of forward contracts, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate at the date 
of transaction is recognized as income or expense over the contract period.The premium or discount 
arising at inception of the forward contracts on the Foreign Exchange Currency not intended for trading 
or speculation purpose is amortized as expense or income over the life of contract. 

 
ix. Borrowing Costs 

 
Borrowing costs attributable to the Tangible Assets during their construction/ renovation and 
modernization are capitalized. Such borrowing costs are apportioned on the average balance of capital 
work-in-progress for the year. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.  

 
x. Taxation - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 
Current tax: 

 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ 
as reported in the Statement of Profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. 

 
Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with 
the Income- tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. 
 
Deferred tax: 

 
- Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, 
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deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of goodwill. 
 

- The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 
- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

 
- Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 

in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. 

 
- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

asset and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current 
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
xi. Property plant and equipment  

 
- Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to its working condition for its intended use and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised 
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation commences when the assets are 
ready for their intended use. 
 

- Freehold land and Assets held for sale are not depreciated. 
 

- Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their 
residual values over their useful lives, using the written down value (WDV) method. The estimated 
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation on assets 
are provided on written down value (WDV) method on the gross block at the rates specified in the 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions/deductions to fixed assets is being 
provided on pro-rata basis from/to the month of acquisition/disposal. Full cost of all small and low value 
items each costing Rs.5000/- or less under all class of assets is fully charged to revenue in the year in 
which the assets are put to use. No part of the cost of such items is included in the cost of fixed assets 
and accordingly no depreciation is charged thereon. 

 
- An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Type of Assets Useful Life (in Years) 

Land – Freehold - 
Buildings  30 
Electrical Installations and Equipments 40 
Plant and Machinery 15/22 
Furniture & Fixtures 10 
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Office Equipments 5 
Motor Vehicles 8 
Computers and Data Processing Units 3 

 
 

xii. Intangible Assets 
 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less Accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation methods are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting year, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible 
assets with Indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. 

 
xiii. Impairment of assets: 

 
Impairment loss is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amounts. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present 
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at 
the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from sale of the asset in an arm’s length 
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. If at the balance sheet date there is 
an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, then such loss is reversed and the asset is 
restated to the  extent of the carrying value of the asset that would have been determined (net of 
amortization/  depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognized. 

 
xiv. Pre - paid expenses: 

 
Expenses pertaining to the subsequent period are accounted as “Pre Paid Expenses”. 

 
xv. Financial Instruments 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
statement of profit and loss. 

 
xvi. Financial Assets 

 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the 
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place. 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, 
depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

 
xvii. Financial assets at amortised cost 

 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business 
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 
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xviii. Investment In Associates 
The investment in associates are carried in the financial statements at historical cost except when the investment is 
classified as held for sale in which case it is accounted for as non -current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations . 
 
Investments in subsidiaries carried at cost are tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 28. Any impairment 
loss reduces the carrying value of the investment. 

 
xix. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to present 
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments, other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair 
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or 
loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. 

 
xx. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading. 
Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at 
fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in 
profit or loss. 

 
xxi. Cash and cash equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
xxii. Cash Flow Statement 

 
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow. 

 
xxiii. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

 
Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument. 
 
Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is 
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recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss 
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. 
 

xxiv. Financial liabilities 
 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 

xxv. Earnings per equity share 
 

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per 
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares 
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential 
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive 
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and 
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods. 

 
xxvi. Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

 
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the directors of the Company are required to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about 
each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of 
calculation for each affected line item in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The areas involving critical estimates are: 
- Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense  
- Estimation of values of contingent liabilities 
-  
Estimates and judgment are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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Note 3 - Property, plant and equipment 
 

 
 
Pledged against CC/OD Limit 
-Paripassu First Charge on entire fixed assets including land situated at Kh. 164/1-4, 165/1, 165/5. Ph. No. 18 (8 Hectare situated at Vill. Siltia, Th Pandhana. dist. East Nimar (MP) but 
excluding charge to term lenders. 
 

Note 4 - Right of Use Assets 
 

 
-The above leasehold land rights pertains to property situated in Kheda Industrial Area, Itarsi. 
Pledged against CC/OD Limit 
-Pari passu First Charge Land having area of 10 acres in village Kheda Industrial Area, Th Itarsi, Dist. Haushangabad is pledged against CC/OD Limit. 

Description of Assets  Land - Freehold  Buildings 
 Electrical 

Installations 
and Equipment 

 Plant and  
Machinery  

 Plant and 
Machinery 

 Furniture & 
Fixtures 

 Office 
Equipments 

 Motor Vehicles 
 Computers and 
data processing 

units 
 Total 

Useful Life (in Years)                                     30                             40                            22                                 15                            10                        5                                8                                      3 
I. Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 57.79 1138.23 42.83 2401.38 5602.66 83.03 94.67 546.68 32.59 9999.86
Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.85 0.00 0.83 25.63 0.25 34.56
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance as on 31st March, 2022 57.79 1138.23 42.83 2401.38 5610.51 83.03 95.50 572.31 32.84 10034.42

II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the year 2021-2022
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 0.00 479.08 21.21 1423.22 4044.16 73.94 82.07 387.90 27.79 6539.38
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year 0.00 36.52 0.77 94.10 233.40 1.71 2.61 32.31 2.18 403.59
Eliminated on disposal of assets 0.00 0.00
Balance as on 31st March, 2022 0.00 515.60 21.99 1517.31 4277.56 75.65 84.68 420.20 29.97 6942.97

Net block  (I-II)
Balance as on 31st March, 2022 57.79 622.63 20.84 884.06 1332.95 7.39 10.82 152.10 2.87 3091.45
Balance as on 31st March, 2021 57.79 659.15 21.61 978.16 1558.50 9.09 12.59 158.78 4.80 3460.48

Leasehold land- Rights 2021-22 2020-21
I. Gross Block
Balance as at beginning of the period 4.46 4.46
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at end of the period 4.46 4.46

0.00 0.00
II. Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment for the period
Balance as at beginning of the period 0.00 0.00
Amortisation through OCI 1.49 0.00
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year 0.05 0.00
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at end of the period 1.53 0.00

Net block  (I-II) 2.93 4.46



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                  83 

Note 5 – Investments 
 

 
 
-Out of the above, Quoted Scripts in three different listed companies have been suspended, thus valuation of those scripts are done as per the last closing  value aggregating to Rs. 0.50 Lakhs in above. 
 
Note 6 - Other Financial Assets 
 

 
 

Note 7 – Inventories 
 

 

 QTY  QTY 
 Current  Non Current  Current  Non Current 

INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT COST
1.Quoted Investment (fully paid)
Investment in Equity Instrument 168525.00 165.56 1.50 165.56

Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments of Associates 

Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited (Associate) 264600.00 223.60 2.65 0.00 224.10
BLUEBRAHMA CLEAN ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE 
LIMITED(including goodwill of Rs.289.51 Lakhs) 13845000.00

1904.50

Total Investment (Cost) 14278125.00 2293.66 4.14 389.66
Opening Impairment value of investment -148.45
Less- Net change in fair value of investment during 
the year

10.53 -148.45

Investment Carried at FVTOCI 14278125.00 2155.75 4.14 241.22

Of the above, investments designated as FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Of the above, investments held for trading 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other investments carried at FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 14278125.00 0.00 2155.75 4.14 0.00 241.22

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 14278125.00 0.00 2155.75 4.14 0.00 241.22

31-03-2021
 Amounts  Amounts 

Particular 31-03-2022

Particular 2021-22 2020-21
Non Current
Security Deposits
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 332.46 330.41
Others(to be specified);
Total Other Financial Asset 332.46 330.41

2021-22 2020-21
2127.49 1164.63

14442.08 5489.40
674.28 616.61

Total 17243.86 7270.64

Finished Goods
Stores and Spares 

Particulars 
Raw Material 
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-During the year ended March 31, 2022 the shares of company were listed in SME Platform and 65.84 Lakhs equity shares were issued. 
-During the year ended March 31, 2021, face value of shares has been splitted into Rs. 10/- per share from Rs. 1000/- per share. 
-During the year ended March 31, 2021, company has issued the bonus shares in Ratio of 139:10 shares and total no. of 17179010 shares has 
been issued as a bonus shares. 
 
  

NOTE 8 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
Secured, Considered Good 

Unsecured, Considered Good 1294.23 3514.07

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
1294.23 3514.07

Less: Allowances for Doubtful Debts 
1294.23 3514.07

Categorization of Trade Receivables

1. Undisputed Trade Receivables, Considered Good 1277.40 3514.07
2. Undisputed Trade Receivables, Considered Doubtful 0.00 0.00
3. Disputed Trade Receivables, Considered Good 16.83 0.00
4. Disputed Trade Receivables, Considered Doubtful 0.00 0.00

Total 1294.23 3514.07
Trade Receivable are non interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 0 to 90 days.

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
less than 6 Months 1276.37 3496.21
6 Months - 1 year 0.00 17.86
1 - 2 Years 17.86 0.00
2 - 3 Years 0.00 0.00
More than 3 years 0.00 0.00
Total 1294.23 3514.07

NOTE 9 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
(Measured at amortised cost, except otherwise stated)

Cash in Hand 111.05 45.04

Balances with Banks 3280.56 905.93

Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months

- With Banks 55.00 0.00

- With Financial Institutions 0.00 0.00

3446.61 950.97

NOTE 10 : SHORT TERM LOANS

Advance for Materials & Services 242.99 2438.78

Loans & Advance to Others 0.00 257.18

Advance to Staff & Labours 22.03 2.88

265.02 2698.84
NOTE 11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Security Deposits 664.59 167.20

Prepaid Ins./Lease rent/Expenses 113.66 74.39

Advance Tax and TDS 0.00 0.00

GST/Mandi Tax Refund Receivable 244.41 67.01

Interest Receivable 57.84 51.45

Other Current Assets/Receivables 357.29 416.55

1437.78 776.60

NOTE 12 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised 3000.00 3000.00

3,00,00,000 Equity Share Of Rs. 10

a.Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Opening Equity 1841.49 123.59

18414910 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

P.Y 12359 Equity shares of Rs. 1000 each

Shares issued during the year 658.40 0.00

Add:- Bouns Shares Issued 0.00 1717.90

Equity Shares 2499.89 1841.49

24998910 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

P.Y 18414910 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each
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Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares
Name of Share Holder No of Share  % of Share No of Share  % of Share
Anant Trafina Private Limited 5685840            22.74% 5685840             30.87%
KN Resources Private Limited 4470000           17.88% 4470000             24.27%

Anant Countertrade Private Limited 5721600            22.89% 5721600              31.07%

Smt Sushila Devi Shrishrimal 0                            0.00% 1306730                7.10%

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

-Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

NOTE 13 : OTHER EQUITY

Reserve & Surplus

Retained Earnings

O/Balance of Profit & loss A/c 13976.92 13221.44

Add: Profit during the year 4718.57 2584.47

Other Comprehensive Income 6.40 -111.09

Less:- Utilised for Issue of  Bouns Shares 0.00 -1717.90

Closing Balance 18701.88 13976.92

Share Premium A/c

Opening Balance 0.00 0.00

Addition During the year 4279.60 0.00

Closing Balance 4279.60 0.00

Total 22981.48 13976.92

NOTE 14 : LONG TERM BORROINGS

Secured Loan

 Vehicle Loan From Bank 13.79 23.94

(secured against vehicle)
13.79 23.94

Unsecured Loan

Inter Corporate Deposits 0.00 0.00

13.79 23.94

Details of vehicle loans from bank

Bank Name Type Of Loan Sanction Date Sanction Amount

UCO Bank - Raipur Term Loan 23.07.2019 47.43
Note 15 - Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Opening Deferred Tax Laibilities (Net) 196.43 241.85

Impact of Timing difference -49.46 -45.42

Closing Deferred Tax Laibilities (Net) 146.97 196.43

NOTE 16: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loan:-

Loan from Banks( CC / EPC/LC /WCDL/WHR)

Export Packing Credit 0.00 0.00

Cash Credit 1603.07 2217.96

Pledge loan (WHR) 0.00 0.00

Current maturities of Long term borrowing (vehicle loan) 10.16 9.58

1613.23 2227.55

-During the period ended 31st March, 2022 , the amount of per share dividend recognised 
as distribution to equity 

Particulars Sanction 
Limit

 CC/EPC/LC Limits Rs. in 
lakhs

- Union Bank of India (Erst Corp. Bank) 3000

- SBI 3000

- Yes Bank 3000

- HDFC 2000

- IDBI 1500

WHR Limits

- SBI 2500
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Security for CC/EPC/LC Loans: 

17.1 - Primary : Pari-passu First Charge on Inventory cum Book debts/ Current Assets excl. Pledged stock both present & Future 
for Working Capital Limits Collateral:  Pari-passu First Charge on entire Fixed Assets excluding windmill & vehicle incl. Land 
situated at Kh. 164/1-4, 165/1, 165/5. Ph. No. 18 (8 Hectare situated at Vill. Siltia, Th Pandhana. dist. East Nimar (MP) & Land 
having area of 10 acres in village Kheda Industrial Area, Th Itarsi, Dist. Haushangabad (excl. Charge to Term Lenders) 
 
Security for WHR loan: 
 
'17.2  Pledge of Underlying Stocks for which WHR has been issued with exclusive Lien marked in favour of the Bank. 
 

 
 
  

0.00 0.00

1062.69 533.58

TOTAL 1062.69 533.58

Reconciliation of Trade Payables

1. MSME (Undisputed) 0.00 0.00

2. Others (Undisputed) 1062.69 533.58

3. MSME (Disputed) 0.00 0.00

4. Others (Disputed) 0.00 0.00

Total 1062.69 533.58

Reconciliation of Trade Payables

less than 12 Months 1004.81

1 - 2 Years 57.88

2 - 3 Years 0.00

More than 3 years 0.00

Total 1062.69

NOTE 18 : SHORT TERM PROVISION

Provisions 29.09 6.07

Brokerage Payable 60.47 44.02

Expense Payable 96.24 62.93

Audit Fees Payable 1.04 2.13

Other Liabilities 47.53 7.55

MPEB Payable 13.52 25.97

247.88 148.66

NOTE 19 : CURRENT TAX  LIABILITIES( NET)

Provision for Income Tax 494.09 149.70

494.09 149.70

NOTE 20 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

TDS/TCS Payable 143.43 62.16

SGST/IGST/CGST tax Payable 40.96 57.11

Statutory Dues EPF 4.78 5.46

ESI 0.75 0.79

Security deposit from contractor 20.14 23.89

210.06 149.41

(a) Total outstanding dues of MSME 

(b) Total outstanding dues other (a) above 

Note 17 - Trade Payables 
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NOTE 21 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Agri Commodities 187931.60 129779.78

Power Generation 170.10 115.70

Total 188101.70 129895.49

NOTE 22 : OTHER INCOME

Other income 77.13 21.31

Dividend 0.60 0.00

Interest Income 300.53 169.05

Profit on sale of Assets 0.00 33.49

378.26 223.86
NOTE 23:MATERIAL CONSUMED 

Opening Stock 1164.63 2601.55

Add: Purchase 38372.47 66376.51
39537.10 68978.05

Less: Closing Stock 2127.49 1164.63

Consumption 37409.60 67813.42

NOTE 24 : PURCHASE-TRADE STOCK 

Agri Commodities 143970.99 49620.35

Total 143970.99 49620.35

NOTE 25 : CHANGES-INVENTORIES 

Agri Commodities

Opening Stock 5489.40 4867.15

Closing stock 14442.08 5489.40

Increase/ Decrease in Stock -8952.69 -622.24

NOTE 26 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salary, Allowances,  & Training 926.54 637.74

Gratuity 31.07 11.23

Company Contribution to PF 30.68 29.35

Company Contribution to ESI 7.59 7.33

995.88 685.65

NOTE 27 : FINANCIAL COSTS

Interest on Working Capital 121.04 418.43

Interest on Others 0.77 0.80

Bank Charges / ECGC 71.82 44.50

193.63 463.72

NOTE 28 : OTHER EXPENSES
Direct Expenses

Consumables 819.85 1334.47

Consumption of Packing Material 872.94 1153.24

Power charges 588.52 850.12

Repair & Maintenance 308.87 322.28

Custom Duties 1316.87 0.00

Other Manufacturing Expenses 2.96 5.57

3910.02 3665.69



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                  88 

 

NOTE 29 : Current Tax 

 

  

Indirect Expenses

Office & General Expenses 103.78 95.64

Office Rent 92.52 125.35

Travelling 135.89 66.16

Foreign Travelling 8.94 7.30

Vehicle Expenses 47.58 38.80

Printing & Stationery 3.64 4.18

Computer Expenses 3.01 1.80

License Fees 5.96 8.52

Legal/Professional Expenses 97.96 77.10

Communication Expenses 5.22 5.50

Insurance 67.58 46.17

Advertisement 1.25 1.70

Charity & Donation 2.81 2.54

Expenses CSR 167.00 20.00

Interest on Income Tax/TDS/TCS 0.48 7.29

Interest on  Income Tax Earlier Year 27.71 0.00

Entry Tax & Sales tax 1.32 0.65

Membership Fees 3.07 2.83

Balances w/off -0.33 -0.11
Bad debts 14.19 0.00
IPO Expenses 356.43 0.00

Rates & Professional Taxes/Service 12.90 2.50

Interest on Delay Indirect Taxes/Duty 0.17 11.85

Windmill Expenses 30.60 29.67

Auditor Remuneration 2.30 2.30

Freight & Rebate 865.62 1465.60

Selling & Distribution Expenses 2035.40 2432.84

Godown Rent 78.38 102.50

Sales  Tax (VAT/CST & ET )Earlier Year 0.00 1.84

GST Expense 7.56 4.10

4178.93 4564.63

8088.95 8230.31

PARTICULARS Note No.

 (1) Current tax 1700.35 974.41

 (2) Deferred tax -49.46 -45.42

Total 1650.89 929.00
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30. During the year, Company was listed in SME Platform. In respect of Equity Shares issued during the year, moneys 
raised by way of initial public offer were applied for the purposes for which those were raised.  

 
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 
i) Related Parties  

 

Key Management Personnel 

1 Vijay Shrishrimal (Director) 

2 Sanjay Shrishrimal (Director) 

3 Dhirendra Shrishrimal (Director) 

4 Akshat Sharma (Company Secretary) 

Promoters 

1 KN Resources Private Limited 

2 Anant Countertrade Private Limited 

3 Anant Trafina Private Limited 

4 Vijay Shrishrimal  

5 Sanjay Shrishrimal  

6 Dhirendra Shrishrimal  

Director having substantial interest in the Entity 

1 Anant Infrastructures Private Limited 

2 KN Infratech Private Limited 

3 KN Solvent & Vanaspati Private Limited 

4 Palak Exim Private Limited 

5 Salahkar Distributors Private Limited 

6 Vijay Kumar & Co. 

Director along with relatives having substantial interest in 
the Entity 

1 Anant Ventures 

2 Cking Infrastructure 

3 Mahavir Dal Mill 

Company Having Substantial Interest 1 Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited 

 2 
Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private 
Limited 

Other Non- executive director 
1 Pradeep Kumar Totla 

2 Poonam Rishi Pilani 
3 Gopal Krishan Sood 

 
ii) Revenue Transactions during the year with related parties: 
 
KMP: 

S.No. Name of the party 
Nature of transaction 

Amount (Rs. In 
Lakh.) 

10 Sanjay Shrishrimal Director Salary 120.00 
11 Dhirendra Shrishrimal  Director Salary 120.00 
12. Vijay Shrishrimal Director Salary 120.00 
13. Vijay Shrishrimal Rent 24.00 
14. Sanjay Shrishrimal Rent  24.00 
15. Dhirendra Shrishrimal  Rent  24.00 
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Promoters 
S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount (Rs. 

In Lakh.) 
1. K N Resources Private Limited Sale Non Performance 26.00 
2. K N Resources Private Limited PP Bags Purchases 14.00 
3. K N Resources Private Limited Gunny Bags Sale  03.00 
4 K N Resources Private Limited Maize Sale 468.00 
5. K N Resources Private Limited Gram Sale 63.00 
6. K N Resources Private Limited Soyabean Sale 18.00 
7. K N Resources Private Limited Soya Doc Purchase 178.00 
8 K N Resources Private Limited Degum Oil Purchase 3521.00 
9. K N Resources Private Limited Gunny Bags Purchases 13.00 
10. K N Resources Private Limited Interest Income  115.00 

 
Director having substantial interest in the Entity 

 
S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount (Rs. In 

Lakhs.) 
1. Anant Trafina Private Limited Data Processing 10.00 
2. Anant Trafina Private Limited Gram Sale 61.00 
3 Palak Exim Private Limited Interest Income 84.00 

 
Director along with relatives having substantial interest in the Entity 

 
S.No. Name of the party Nature of transaction Amount  

(Rs. In Lakhs.) 
1 Mahaveer Dall Mill Soya Husk Purchase 16.00 
2. Mahaveer Dall Mill Cattle Feed Purchase 104.00 
3. Mahaveer Dall Mill Maize Purchase 2.00 

 
Company Having Substantial Interest 
 

S.No. Name of the party Relation Nature of transaction Amount in Rs. 
(Lakhs) 

1 Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited Associate  Interest Expense 7.00 
 
iii) Loan Transactions during the year with related parties: 

(Figure in Lakhs) 
Loan Granted: 
Sno Related Party Category Relation Opening 

Balance 
Loan/ 
Advance 
Granted 

Loan 
Refunded 

Closing 
Balance 

Percentage to the 
Total Loans/ Advances 
in the nature of Loan 

1 K N Resources 
Private 
Limited 

Promoter Director having 
substantial interest 
in the Entity 

- 20585.09 20585.09 - - 

2 Palak Exim 
Private 
Limited 

Other than 
Promotor 

Director having 
substantial interest 
in the Entity 

1705.85 2996.14 4701.99 - - 

 
Loan Taken: 

Sno Related Party Category Relation Opening 
Balance 

Loan taken Loan Repaid Closing 
Balance 

1 Raipur Mega 
Food Park 

Others Company 
Having 
Substantial 
Interest 

- 293.50 293.50 - 

 
Investment Made 
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S.no. Related Party Category Relation Opening 

Balance 
Investment Made Closing 

Balance 
1 Bluebrahma 

Clean Energy 
Solutions Private 
Limited 

Others Company 
Having 
Substantial 
Interest 

- 1904.50* 
(13845000 Nos. of 
equity share of 
Rs.10 each) 

1904.50 
(13845000 
Nos. of 
equity share 
of Rs.10 
each) 

 
*Including goodwill of Rs.289.51 
 

32. Promoter Share Holding 

NAME OF PROMOTER No of share as on  
March 31, 2022 

No of share as on  
March 31, 2021 

% of Total 
Share as on  
March 31, 

2022 

% of Total 
Share as on  
March 31, 

2021 

% Change 
During the 

year 

Vijay Shrishrimal 845327 409750 3.38% 2.23% 1.16% 

Sushila Devi Shrishrimal 0 1306730 0.00% 7.10% -7.10% 

Sanjay Shrishrimal 845327 409750 3.38% 2.23% 1.16% 

Dhirendra Shrishrimal 845326 409750 3.38% 2.23% 1.16% 

Anant Trafina Pvt. Ltd. 5685840 5685840 22.74% 30.88% -8.13% 

K.N. Resources Pvt. Ltd. 4470000 4470000 17.88% 24.27% -6.39% 

Anant Countertrade Pvt. Ltd. 5721600 5721600 22.89% 31.07% -8.18% 
 

33. Details regarding capacities, production, Stocks and sale of manufactured goods: 
Qty in MT 

Particulars As on 31/03/2022 As on 31/03/2021 

   
Registered 

Capacity (p.a.) 

 
 
 

Installed  
 Capacity 

(p.a.) 

Registered  
Capacity 

(p.a.) 

Installed  
Capacity 

(p.a.) 
    
1. Solvent Extraction of OIL / OIL Cake     
Itarsi 150000.00  150000.00  150000.00  150000.00  
Khandwa unit-1 120000.00  120000.00  120000.00  120000.00  

Khandwa unit-2 105000.00  105000.00  105000.00  105000.00  
     
2. Refined vegetable Oil      
Itarsi 30000.00  30000.00  30000.00  30000.00 
Khandwa 15000.00  15000.00  15000.00  15000.00  
     
3. Flour Mill      

Flour Mill 21000.00  21000.00  21000.00  21000.00  
 
4. Wind Mill      
Wind Mill Nagda -Dewas-MP  1.25  1.25  1.25  1.25  
Wind Mill Nandurbar-MS  1.25  1.25  1.25  1.25  
Wind Mill  Sangali- MS  0.60  0.60  0.60  0.60  
Wind Mill  Akal-RAJ 1.50  1.50  1.50  1.50  
        

 (Installed Capacity is certified by the Directors and not verified by the Auditors, as it is a Technical Matter & Being accepted by the Auditors.) 
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34. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS : 
 

PARTICULARS AMOUNT 
31.03. 2022 

AMOUNT 
31.03. 2021 

Audit Fees 230000/- 230000/- 
 

35. THE COMPUTATION OF BASIC/DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE : 
            

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Profit for the year after taxation (Rs.) 471906948 258446465 
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares Basic  24998910 18414910 
Basic Per Share (Rs.) 18.88 14.03 

  
 
 

36. Additional Information pursuant to Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 r.w. provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 

 
S.No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
A. Value of Imports on C.I.F. Basis (Rs. in lac) $21688961.05 

16296.52 
- 

B. Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rs. in lac)  - 
C. Value of export on CIF basis($) 

(Rs in lac.) 
 

$11077532 
10146.17 

 
$7569943.64 

5527.34 
 

37. DETAILS ON GRATUITY INFORMATION  
 

B. The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the 
Group's financial statements as at 31/03/22 : 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

1: Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations: 

Period From: 01-04-2021 To 31-03-2022 
From: 01-04-2020 To 31-03-

2021 

Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the 
period 

199.69 183.82 

Interest cost 13.47 12.87 
Current service cost 9.10 8.47 
Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 
Benefits paid (if any) -9.95 -9.77 
Actuarial (gain)/loss -2.95 4.30 
Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 209.37 199.69 

 

2: Key results (The amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet): 

Period As on: 31-03-2022 As on: 31-03-2021 

Present value of the obligation at the end of the period 209.37 199.69 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 180.33 166.79 
Net liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 29.03 32.90 
Funded Status - Surplus/ (Deficit)  -29.03 -32.90 
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3: Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss: 

Period From: 01-04-2021 To 31-
03-2022 

From: 01-04-2020 To 31-
03-2021 

Interest cost 13.48 12.87 
Current service cost 9.10 8.47 
Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00 
Expected return on plan asset -11.25 -11.23 
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the period -2.50 5.22 
Expenses to be recognized in P&L 8.82 15.33 

 

4: Table showing changes in the Fair Value of Planned Assets: 

  

Period 
From: 01-04-2021 

To 31-03-2022 

From: 01-04-
2020 To  31-03-

2021 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 166.79 160.38 
Expected return on plan assets 11.26 11.23 
Contributions 12.68 5.88 
Benefits paid -9.95 -9.77 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets -0.45 -0.92 
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the Period 180.33 166.79 

 
38. No provision has been made for leave encasement. It is explained to us that the above expense are debited in books on 

cash basis. 
 

39. All the Immovable Property are held in the name of Company. 
 

40. The Company has disclosed investment at cost /market value which ever is less. 
 
41. During the Year Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets). 
 
42. During the Year Company has not revalued its intangible assets. 
 
43. Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) No Capital- Work-n Progress as on March 31, 2022. 
 
44. No  Intangible assets under development 

 
45. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 

 
46. The Company was not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 
 
47. As per the available records, the Company does not have any transaction with the Companies which are struck off as per 

Sec 248 Companies Act 2013 or Sec 560 of Companies Act 1956. 
 
48. Charge with respect to Vehicle Loan amounting to Rs. 43.00 Lakhs was not registered since same was not required by the 

Lender. Further Charges amounting to Rs. 3443.77 Lakhs could not be satisfied due non granting of Loan closure letter 
pursuant to demerger of the Lender. 

 
49. As on date the company does not have any subsidiary company as defined under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, since the Compliance with number of layers of companies in not applicable to the Company. 
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50. As on date company has not entered in Scheme(s) of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 

2013 
 
51. Company has utilized the Borrowed Funds and share premium for the purpose for which it is raised. 
 
52. As on date company does not have any share application money pending for allotment. 
 
53. Company has not issued any preference share or convertible securities.   
 
54. Disclosure related to Consolidated Financial Statement: 

 
The Company holds Investment (less than 51%) in Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited. The associate company has 
no income from operations and only provisioning for income tax has been done, which has been adjusted against other 
equity. Since no operation have commenced as yet and looking to the materiality, the management does not find it 
material to have any impact in Consolidated Financial Statement. 
 
There is a demand amounting to Rs. 194 Lakhs relating to Income Tax. The appeal against which is pending before CIT 
(Appeals). 

 
Further on 29th March 2022, the Company has made Investment (less than 51%) in Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions 
Private Limited. Since it has no revenue from its operations and looking to the materiality, the management does not 
find it material to have any impact in Consolidated Financial Statement.  
 
In calculation of Goodwill relating to Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited, entire profit has been 
considered as pre-acquisition profit because the investment in the associate company was made on 29th March 2022. 

 
55. The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 

 

Particulars 
Numerato

r 

Amount as at (Rs. 
in Lakhs) 

Denominat
or 

Amount as at (Rs. 
in Lakhs)  Ratio as at  

31-03-
2022 

31-03-
2021 

31-03-
2022 

31-03-
2021 

31-03-
2022 

31-03-
2021 

Varianc
e 

Current Ratio 
Current 
assets 

23687.50 15211.12 
Current 

liabilities 
3627.95 3208.90 6.53 4.74 38%*1 

Debt Equity 
Ratio 

Total Debt 
(represent 

lease 
liabilities) 

1627.01 2251.49 
Shareholder's 

Equity 
25481.87 15818.41 0.06 0.14 -55%*2 

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

Earnings 
available for 
debt service 

NA NA Debt Service NA NA NA NA NA 

Return On 
Equity Ratio 

Net profits 
after taxes 

4719.07 2584.46 
Average 

Shareholder's 
Equity 

25481.87 15818.41 18.52 16.34 13% 

Inventory 
Turnover ratio 

Cost of 
goods sold 

172427.91 116811.53 Average 
Inventory 

12257.25 7640.36 14.07 15.29 -8% 

Trade 
Receivable 

Turnover Ratio 
Revenue 188101.70 129895.49 Average Trade 

Receivable 
2404.15 1946.84 78.24 66.72 17% 

Trade Payable 
Turnover Ratio 

Purchase of 
services and 

other 
expenses 

182343.46 115996.86 
Average Trade 

Payables 
798.14 321.25 228.46 361.09 -37%*3 

Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio 

Revenue 188101.70 129895.49 
Working 
Capital 

20059.54 12002.22 9.38 10.82 -13% 

Net Profit Ratio Net profit 4719.07 2584.46 Revenue 188479.95 130119.34 2.50 1.99 26%*4 

Return on 
Capital 

Employed 

Earning 
before 

interest and 
taxes 

6563.59 3977.18 
Capital 

Employed 
25495.66 15842.35 25.74 25.10 3% 
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Return On 
Investment/To

tal Assets 

Net profits 
after taxes 

4719 2584 Total Assets 29271 19248 16.12 13.43 20% 

 
Reasons for variances above 25% are as follows: 
*1. Increase in current assets due to proceeds received relating to issue of shares to public, resulting in overall 
increase in current ratio. 
*2. Repayment of debt during the year resulting in decreased debt liability and also there is a increase in 
Shareholder’s equity due to public issue of shares, which resulted in improved debt-equity ratio. 
*3. Increase in outstanding trade payable balance in current year compared to previous year, resulting in declining 
trade payable turnover ratio, resulting into better Working Capital Management. 
*4 .Increase in net profit during the year, due to reduction in Finance cost (indirect expense) resulting in increased 
net profit ratio. 
 
56. Segment Information- 
 

I. Revenue from operations 
      (Rs. In lakhs) 

 Activity wise        
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Agro Product 187931.60 129779.78 
Power  170.09 115.70 
Total 188101.69 129895.49 
 

 Geographical location wise 
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Sale of Product   
-Outside India 10146.17 6577.85 
-Within India 177785.43 123201.94 
Sale of Power(Within India) 170.09 115.70 

Total 188101.69 129895.49 
 

II. Non Current operating asset 
All the non current asset of the group are located in India. 

 
III. The group does not have revenue from transactions with a single external customer, amount to 10% 

of the total revenue. 
 

56. MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES 
 

As per the information available with the Company, the Company does not owe any dues (principal as well 
interest) as at 31st March 2022 to Micro, Small & Medium enterprises. Company had paid all dues according 
the provisions under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The amount of interest paid 
by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year –Nil 
 

57. Corporate Social Responsibility 
 
As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, a company meeting the applicability of threshold, needs to spend 
at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Activities. The Areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, 
promoting education, art& culture, health care, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, 
disaster relief and rural development project. A CSR committee is formed by the company as per the act.  
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Disclosure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
                         (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particular March 31, 
2022 

March 31, 
2021 

l. amount required to be spent by the company during the year  57.06 46.52 
m. amount of expenditure incurred:  167.00 20.00 
n. Excess amount Spent:  109.94 Nil 
o. Amount adjusted towards previous year’s shortfall:  109.11 Nil 
p. Surplus amount carry forward by the Company:  0.83 Nil 
q. shortfall at the end of the year:  Nil 26.52 
r. total of previous years shortfall:  Nil 82.58 

s. reason for shortfall:  N.A. 

Unable to 
ascertain 
and identify 
appropriate 
projects. 

t. nature of CSR activities:  

Promoting 
Education 
and 
eradicating 
hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition. 

Promoting 
Education 

u. details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant 
Accounting Standard:  

N.A. N.A. 

v. where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering 
into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the 
year should be shown separately: 

N.A. N.A. 

 
58.  Crypto Currency Transaction during the year NIL. 

 
59. Previous year’s figure have been regrouped, rearranged and recast where ever it is   necessary.  

 
60. Note no. 1 to 60 forms an integral part of Financial Statement.  
 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants, Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 28.11.2022   
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KN Agri Resources Limited  
(Formerly Itarsi Oils & Flours Private Limited) 

CIN-L15141CT1987PLC003777  

Statement of Change in Equity for Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022 – Consolidated 
 (With its associates ‘Raipur Mega Food Park Private Limited’ and ‘Bluebrahma Clean Energy Solutions Private Limited’)  Rs.( in Lakhs) 

 

 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (1) For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
KN Agri Resources Limited 

Notes to Accounts (2 to 61)  
As per our report of even date annexed   
For, N. Kumar & Co.  Vijay Shrishrimal Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
Chartered Accountants, Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director & CFO 
Firm regn no. 004110C  DIN: 00323316 DIN: 00324169 
   
   
N.K. Jain  Akshat Sharma 
(Partner)  Company Secretary  
M.No. 073155   
   
Raipur-492001   
Date: 28.11.2022   

 

Central 
Grant 
Under 

IIU 
Scheme

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Debent
ure 

Redem
ption 

Reserv
e

Security 
Premium

Share 
option 

outstandi
ng 

account

Retained 
Earnings

Debt 
instruments 

through 
Other 

Comprehens
ive Income

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges

Revaluat
ion 

Surplus

Exchange 
differences 

on 
translating 

the financial 
statements of 

a foreign 
operation

Remeasurement
s of the defined 

benefit plans

Change in Fair 
value of 

Investment

Not to be 
reclassified to 

Profit and Loss

Change in right 
of use of asset

1,841      -                 -       -            -      -                     -         13,221         -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              15,063      
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         2,584           -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              2,584        
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    (148)                   37                      -                    -           -              (111)          
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            

(1,718)          -                    -                    -                    (1,718)       
1,841     -                 -       -            -     -                    -         14,088        -              -                       -            -        -               -                    (148)                  37                     -                    -          -              15,818      

 Bonus shares issued 

 Profit for the year 
 Dividends 
 Transfer to retained earnings 
 Any other change (Repayment) 

 Balance as on 31.03.2021 

Fund for 
unforseen 
exigencies

Total 

 Balance 01.04.2020 
 Transfer to general reserve 
 Share based payment to employees 
 Equity instrument through OCI 

Particulars Share 
capital

Equity 
component of 

compound 
financial 

instruments

Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Comprehensive Income Money 
received 
against 
share 

warrants

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Debent
ure 

Redem
ption 

Reserv
e

Security 
Premium

Share 
option 

outstandi
ng 

account

Retained 
Earnings

Debt 
instruments 

through 
Other 

Comprehens
ive Income

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow 

Hedges

Revaluat
ion 

Surplus

Exchange 
differences 

on 
translating 

the financial 
statements of 

a foreign 
operation

Remeasurement
s of the defined 

benefit plans

Change in Fair 
value of 

Investment

Not to be 
reclassified to 

Profit and Loss

Change in right 
of use of asset

1,841      -                 -       -            -      -                     -         14,088         -               -                        -             -         -                -                    (148)                   37                      -                    -           -              15,818      
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         4,719           -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    (3)                      -                    -           -              4,716        
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              -            
-         -                 -       -            -      -                     -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    11                      -                    (1)                      -           -              9               
-         -                 -       -            -      4,280                 -         -              -               -                        -             -         -                -                    -                    -                    -                    -           -              4,280        
658         -                    -                    -                    658           

2,500     -                 -       -            -     4,280                -         18,807        -              -                       -            -        -               -                    (138)                  35                     (1)                      -          -              25,481      

 Balance as on 01.04.2021 

 Equity shares issued 

Equity 
component of 

compound 
financial 

instruments

Share 
capital

 Profit for the year 
 Dividends 
 Transfer to retained earnings 
 Any other change (to be specified) 

 Balance as on 31.03.2022 

Particulars

 Transfer to general reserve 
 Share based payment to employees 
 Equity instrument through OCI 

Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Comprehensive Income Money 
received 
against 
share 

warrants

Fund for 
unforseen 
exigencies

 Total  
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RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS 

 
 

 
 

************************ 

31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 Variance

Current Ratio Current assets 23687.50 15211.12 Current liabilities 3627.95 3208.90 6.53 4.74 38%
Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt (represent lease liabilities) 1627.01 2251.49 Shareholder's Equity 25481.37 15818.41 0.06 0.14 -55%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt service NA NA Debt Service NA NA NA NA NA

Return On Equity Ratio Net profits after taxes 4719.07 2584.46 Average Shareholder's Equity 25481.37 15818.41 18.52 16.34 13%
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold 172427.91 116811.53 Average Inventory 12257.25 7640.36 14.07 15.29 -8%
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Revenue 188101.70 129895.49 Average Trade Receivable 2404.15 1946.84 78.24 66.72 17%
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Purchase of services and other expenses 182343.46 115996.86 Average Trade Payables 798.14 321.25 228.46 361.09 -37%
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue 188101.70 129895.49 Working Capital 20059.54 12002.22 9.38 10.82 -13%
Net Profit Ratio Net profit 4719.07 2584.46 Revenue 188479.95 130119.34 2.50 1.99 26%
Return on Capital Employed Earning before interest and taxes 6563.59 3977.18 Capital Employed 25495.16 15842.35 25.74 25.10 3%
Return On Investment/Total Assets Net profits after taxes 4719 2584 Total Assets 29270 19248 16.12 13.43 20%

Amount as at (Rs. in Lakhs)Amount as at (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Ratio as at

Numerator Denominator
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KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 

 

REGD. OFFICE:  KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur, (C.G) - 492001 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Email: info@kngroup.in, Contact: 0771-2293706/08 
Website: www.knagri.com 

 

NOTICE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE MEMBERS OF KN AGRI RESOURCES 
LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 26 2022, AT 03:00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, 
SITUATED AT KN BUILDING, PANCHSHEEL, RAIPUR-492001, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:  

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. ADOPTION OF THE AUDITED STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022, ALONG WITH THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS 
THEREON. 

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF MR. VIJAY SHRISHRIMAL (DIN:00323316), AS A DIRECTOR, LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
3. BORROWING LIMITS UNDER SECTION 180(1)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

To authorize the Board of Directors to borrow funds, not exceeding the prescribed limit passed by the members, pursuant to 
Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed by the members in this regard, pursuant to Section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules 
made thereunder, including any statutory modification(s) thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, the 
consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for borrowing 
from time to time, by way of loans, credit facilities, or any other forms, any such sums of money from Banks, Financial 
Institutions, Bodies Corporate, Companies, firms or any one or more persons in Indian Currency or in Foreign Currency, on 
such terms and conditions, with or without security as the Board may think fit, such amount that monies to be borrowed 
along with the monies already borrowed by the Company may not exceed Rs. 400 Crores (Rupees Four Hundred Crores only) 
in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of the Company and its ‘Free Reserves’ that is to say reserves not set 
apart for any specific purpose. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to arrange and  to fix the terms and conditions 
of all such borrowings from time to time as it may deem fit and to sign and execute all such deeds, contracts, instruments, 
agreements and any other documents as may be required and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, things as may be deemed 
necessary, expedient and incidental thereto and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred by this resolution to any 
committee of Directors and/or Directors and/or Officers of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 

4. AUTHORIZATION FOR CREATION OF SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 180(1)(a) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

To authorize the Board of Directors to create Charge in the assets of the Company, pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) of the 
Companies Act 2013,and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all the earlier resolutions passed by the members in this regard, pursuant to Section 
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules 
made thereunder, including any statutory modification(s) thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, the 
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consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to create such 
charges, mortgages and hypothecations in addition to the existing charges, mortgages and hypothecations created by the 
Company, on such movable and immovable properties, both present and future, for the purpose of due payment of the 
principal and/or together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and all other monies payable by the Company in respect of 
such borrowings and in such form, manner and with such ranking and on such terms & conditions, as the Board may deem fit, 
in favour of the Lenders / Security Trustee, provided that the aggregate indebtedness secured by the assets/properties of the 
Company shall not exceed at any time, the aggregate limit approved by the members of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) 
of the Companies Act ,2013 from time to time. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things, execute such documents as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient for giving effect to this 
Resolution.” 

5. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR 

To ratify the amount of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor of the Company for Financial year 2022-23, andin this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 148 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made thereunder including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, consent of the members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded to ratify the remuneration payable to M/s Sanat Joshi & Associates (FRN: 000506), Cost Auditors of 
the Company appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, to 
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2023, amounting to such 
remuneration as set out in Explanatory Statement annexed to the notice convening the meeting. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and take all such 
steps as may necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 

6. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

To approve the appointment of Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi (DIN: 09807751) as an Independent Director of the Company, and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and 160 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, and the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s), clarification(s), 
substitution(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi (DIN:09807751), be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Women Director of the Company, for a term of five consecutive years  commencing 
from December 26, 2022, not liable to retire by rotation.” 

7. REVISION IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION OF MR. VIJAY SHRISHRIMAL (DIN: 00324169), CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 
OF THE COMPANY. 

To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company 
and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the 
Board of Directors and pursuant to Sections 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and in 
partial modification of the resolutions passed by the Members at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 
December 07, 2021 consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to revise the terms of remuneration 
payable to Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company  (DIN: 00323316),in  such a way that the 
overall remuneration to be paid, including all the benefits, amenities and perquisites shall not exceed Rs. 1,20,00,000 (Rupees 
One Crore Twenty Lakhs) per annum. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT apart from the aforesaid revision in remuneration limit, the other terms and conditions of 
appointment of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, as previously approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting of the Company held on December 07, 2021, shall remain unchanged and continue to be effective. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 
appointment and/or remuneration based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject 
to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the overall remuneration not exceeding the limits specified under 
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute 
all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to 
any Committee of Directors or Director(s) to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions.” 

8. REVISION IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION OF MR. SANJAY SHRISHRIMAL (DIN: 00860294), WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY. 

To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal, Whole-time Director of the Company and in this 
regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the 
Board of Directors and pursuant to Sections 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and in 
partial modification of the resolutions passed by the Members at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 
December 07, 2021 consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to revise the terms of remuneration 
payable to Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal, Whole-time Director of the Company  (DIN: 00860294),in  such a way that the overall 
remuneration to be paid, including all the benefits, amenities and perquisites shall not exceed Rs. 1,20,00,000 (Rupees One 
Crore Twenty Lakhs) per annum. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT apart from the aforesaid revision in remuneration limit, the other terms and conditions of 
appointment of Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal, as previously approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting of the Company held on December 07, 2021, shall remain unchanged and continue to be effective. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 
appointment and/or remuneration based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject 
to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the overall remuneration not exceeding the limits specified under 
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute 
all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to 
any Committee of Directors or Director(s) to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions.” 

9. REVISION IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION OF MR. DHIRENDRA SHRISHRIMAL (DIN: 00324169), WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR OF 
THE COMPANY. 

To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal, Whole-time Director of the Company and in 
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the 
Board of Directors and pursuant to Sections 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and in 
partial modification of the resolutions passed by the Members at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 
December 07, 2021 consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to revise the terms of remuneration 
payable to Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal, Whole-time Director of the Company  (DIN: 00324169), in  such a way that the overall 
remuneration to be paid, including all the benefits, amenities and perquisites shall not exceed Rs. 1,20,00,000 (Rupees One 
Crore Twenty Lakhs) per annum. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT apart from the aforesaid revision in remuneration limit, the other terms and conditions of 
appointment of Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal, as previously approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting of the Company held on December 07, 2021, shall remain unchanged and continue to be effective. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 
appointment and/or remuneration based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject 
to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the overall remuneration not exceeding the limits specified under 
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force). 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute 
all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to 
any Committee of Directors or Director(s) to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions.” 

10. EXEMPTION TO AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY TO ATTEND GENERAL MEETINGS 

To grant exemption to the Auditors of the Company to attend the General Meetings of the Company and in this regard, to 
consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 146 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
consent of the members of the company, be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors to consider granting of exemption 
to the Statutory Auditors of the company to attend all General Meetings, which will held by the company until next Annual 
General Meeting.” 

 

 

 
Dated: November 28, 2022.  By Order of the Board of Directors 
Place: Raipur (C.G.)  For KN Agri Resources Limited 
  (Formerly, Itarsi Oils & Flours Pvt. Ltd.) 
   
   

Dhirendra Shrishrimal 
  Whole-time Director & CFO 
  (DIN: 00324169) 
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Notes: 

 

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and pursuant to the provisions of 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), setting out the material facts in respect of the Special Business to be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM / Meeting”) is annexed hereto.  
 

2. The details as required pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), in respect of the directors seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment at the AGM, are given as an annexure to Explanatory Statement and the same shall form part of 
the Explanatory Statement. 

3. This notice of AGM along with the Annual Report for 2021-22 is being sent by electronic mode to all members of the Company 
in their respective e-mail ID’s registered with the Company / Depository Participant.Shareholders may also note that the 
Notice of 35th Annual General Meeting, Attendance Slip, Proxy Form, Route Map, and the Annual Report for the year 2021-22 
will also be available on the website of Company www.knagri.com. 

4. All the documents referred to in the accompanying notice along with the explanatory Statement, are open for inspection at 
the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days (Monday to Friday) except holidays, up to the 
date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

5. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her 
and the proxy need not be a shareholder of the company. The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective and valid, should be 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting.  

6. A Proxy form is attached herewith along with the notice of AGM. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., 
must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable. 

7.  Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 members provided 
shareholding of those members in aggregate should not be more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying 
voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

8. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are advised to send a duly 
certified copy of the Board Resolution along with the specimen signature, authorizing their representative to attend and vote 
on their behalf at the meeting.  

9. All the members are requested to support the Green Initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India and 
register their email addresses to receive all these documents electronically from the Company in accordance with Rule 18 of 
the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules 2014 and Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. 

10. The entry to the meeting venue will be regulated by means of attendance slips. For attending the meeting,members, proxies, 
and authorized representatives ofthe members, as the case may be, are requested tobring the enclosed attendance slip 
completed in all respects, and duly signed. 

11. Members voting rights shall be in proportion to his/her paid up share capital of the company. The Members who have cast 
their vote via remote e-voting platform, prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
again. 

12. In addition to the facility for voting through electronic means, Ballot Papers shall also be made available at the AGM venue. 
The members attending the AGM who have not cast their votes through Remote e-voting shall be eligible to vote through 
Ballot Paper (polling paper) at the Annual General meeting. In case the member casts his votes through both the processes i.e., 
E-voting and Physical Ballot Form, the votes in the electronic system would be considered and the Ballot Form would be 
ignored.  

13. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.There will be only one Ballot Form for every Folio/ DP ID & Client 
ID irrespective of the number of joint members. 
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14. M/s, Amit Sharma & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries (CP No. 15315; PR No. 1740/2022), have been appointed by 
the Board of Directors of the Company as Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the remote e-voting process as well as voting at the 
Meeting, in a fair and transparentmanner. 

15. A route map indicating direction to reach the venue ofthe AGM is given at the end of this notice as per the requirement of 
Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meeting. 

16. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Website of the Company www.knagri.com 
immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman and communicated to the Stock Exchange. 

Instructions for Remote E-Voting: 

 

The remote E-Voting period begins on Friday, December 23, 2022 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Sunday, December 25, 2022 at 
05:00 p.m. (IST). The Remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.The Members, whose names appear 
in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date  i.e. Friday,December 16, 2022, may cast their vote 
electronically.The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, being December 16, 2022. 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-
Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders Login Method 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for 
IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  
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3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 
 

 
 

 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

 
1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through 

their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 
 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E 
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 
 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 
 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL 
where the e-Voting is in progress. 
 

 
Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants. 

 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at above mentioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

 
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 

on the screen. 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and 
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 
4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 
ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 

vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 
and the system will force you to change your password. 
 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 

whose email ids are not registered. 
 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 
 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address etc. 
 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose 

voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 
 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish 
to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 
 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 
 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of 

the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csamitsharma@yahoo.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney 
/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

 
2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 
44 30  or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate 

(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 
to (Company email id). 

 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client 

master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email id). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, 
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting 
for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting 

by providing above mentioned documents. 
 
4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
 
 
 

***************** 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT  

(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013) 

 
Item No. 3 & 4: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have the powers to borrow 
money, where the money to be borrowed, together the monies already borrowed by the company (apart from temporary loans 
obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) exceeds aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free 
reserves and securities premium of the Company, with the consent of the Shareholders of the Company by way of Special 
Resolution. 
 
At the Extra-ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of the Company held on 16th March, 2015,the members in terms of the provisions 
of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, had granted their approval by way of a Special Resolution to the Board of 
Directors, to borrow from time to time, such amounts as they may deem necessary for the purpose of business of the Company, 
not exceeding Rs. 250 Crores (Rupees Two Hundred Fifty Crores only) over and above the paid-up share capital and free reserves 
of the Company and in terms of provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 to mortgage and/or create a charge on 
any of the moveable and/or immoveable properties and/or the whole or any part of undertaking(s) of the Company to secure its 
borrowings up to the limits of Section 180(1)(c). 
 
In view of the increased business activities, keeping in view the future plans of the Company and to fulfill long term strategic and 
business objectives, it is proposed to increase the borrowing limit to Rs. 400 Crores (Rupees Four Hundred Crores) over and above 
the paid-up share capital and free reserves and securities premium of the Company, pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, increase the limit for creation of charge to secure the indebtedness pursuant to Section 
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 upto the aggregate limit passed by the members under section 180(1)(c). 
 
The Board recommends the Special Resolutions set forth in item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 3 and 4 of the accompanying Notice. 
 
Item No. 5: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at their meeting held on August 24, 
2022, approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Sanat Joshi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 
000506), to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2023 at a remuneration 
of Rs. 76000/- (Rupees Seventy Six Thousand) plus applicable taxes thereon and reimbursement of any out-of-pocket expenses. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, 
consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying notice, for 
ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2023. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in item No. 5 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice. 
 
Item No. 6: 
 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 149, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, have proposed the appointment of Ms. 
Deeptimayee Vidushi (DIN:09807751) as Independent Director (Non-Executive) of the Company. 
 
The Board, based on the background and experience of Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi, is of the opinion that her association would be 
beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to avail her services as an Independent Director. Accordingly, it is proposed to 
appoint Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi as Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company with effect from December 26, 2022. 
 
Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act, and has given her 
consent to act as Director. The Company has also received declaration from Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi to the effect that she meets 
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the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi 
fulfils the conditions for appointment as Independent director as specified in the Act. Details required in terms of Regulation 36(3) 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, has been annexed hereto forming part of this 
Explanatory Statement.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in item No. 6 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice. 
 
Item No. 7: 
 
Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal was appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company with effect from December 07, 2021, to 
hold office for a term up to December 06, 2026. The terms of appointment and remuneration were approved by the Members 
vide resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 07, 2021. Further, the members 
had authorized the Board to alter and vary the terms and conditions including remuneration and incremental thereof, from time 
to time, but such remuneration payable shall be within the limits specified in the Section 197 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). 
 
In recognition of the leadership and strategic guidance provided by Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal to the Company over the last couple of 
years, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have, at the meeting held 
on March 30, 2022, approved revision in the terms of remuneration payable to Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal in accordance with the 
provisions contained in Section 196, 197, 198 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to the approval of Members of the 
Company at the ensuing general meeting. 
 
In this regard, it is proposed to revise the overall remuneration limit for Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal from the existing limit of Rs. 
84,00,000 (Rupees Eighty Four Lakhs only) per annum to Rs. 1,20,00,000 (Rupees One Crores Twenty Lakhs only) per annum.Apart 
from the revision in terms of remuneration stated in the resolutions at Item No. 7, the other terms and conditions of appointment 
of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, as previously approved by the shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held 
on December 07, 2021, shall remain unchanged and continue to be effective. 
 
Details required in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,has 
been annexed hereto forming part of this Explanatory Statement. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in item No. 7 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
Except Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, in 
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice. 
 
Item No. 8: 
 
Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company with effect from December 07, 2021, to hold office 
for a term up to December 06, 2026. The terms of appointment and remuneration were approved by the Members vide 
resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 07, 2021. Further, the members had 
authorized the Board to alter and vary the terms and conditions including remuneration and incremental thereof, from time to 
time, but such remuneration payable shall be within the limits specified in the Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). 
 
In recognition of the leadership and strategic guidance provided by Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal to the Company over the last couple of 
years, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have, at the meeting held 
on March 30, 2022, approved revision in the terms of remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal in accordance with the 
provisions contained in Section 196, 197, 198 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to the approval of Members of the 
Company at the ensuing general meeting. 
 
In this regard, it is proposed to revise the overall remuneration limit for Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal from the existing limit of Rs. 
84,00,000 (Rupees Eighty Four Lakhs only) per annum to Rs. 1,20,00,000 (Rupees One Crores Twenty Lakhs only) per annum. 
Apart from the revision in terms of remuneration stated in the resolutions at Item No. 8, the other terms and conditions of 
appointment of Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal, as previously approved by the shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the 
Company held on December 07, 2021, shall remain unchanged and continue to be effective. 
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Details required in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,has 
been annexed hereto forming part of this Explanatory Statement. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in item No. 8 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
Except Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, 
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 8 of the accompanying Notice. 
 
Item No. 9: 
 
Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company with effect from December 07, 2021, to hold 
office for a term up to December 06, 2026. The terms of appointment and remuneration were approved by the Members vide 
resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 07, 2021. Further, the members had 
authorized the Board to alter and vary the terms and conditions including remuneration and incremental thereof, from time to 
time, but such remuneration payable shall be within the limits specified in the Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). 
 
In recognition of the leadership and strategic guidance provided by Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal to the Company over the last couple 
of years, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee have, at the meeting 
held on March 30, 2022, approved revision in the terms of remuneration payable to Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal in accordance with 
the provisions contained in Section 196, 197, 198 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to the approval of Members of the 
Company at the ensuing general meeting. 
 
In this regard, it is proposed to revise overall remuneration limit for Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal from the existing limit of Rs. 
84,00,000 (Rupees Eighty Four Lakhs only) per annum to Rs. 1,20,00,000 (Rupees One Crores Twenty Lakhs only) per annum.Apart 
from the revision in terms of remuneration stated in the resolutions at Item No. 9, the other terms and conditions of appointment 
of Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal, as previously approved by the shareholders at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company 
held on December 07, 2021, shall remain unchanged and continue to be effective. 
 
Details required in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,has 
been annexed hereto forming part of this Explanatory Statement. 
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in item No. 9 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
Except Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 9 of the accompanying 
Notice. 
 
Item No. 10 
 
As per Section 146 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members is required for exempting the Auditors of the Company to 
attend the General Meetings.  
 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in item No. 10 of the Notice, for the approval of the members. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out at Item No. 10 of the accompanying Notice. 
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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT / VARIATION IN 
TERMS OF REMUNERATION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015] 

 

 

Name Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00323316 

Date of Birth February 27, 1967 

Age 55 years 

Nationality Indian 

Date of first appointment in the Board December 10, 1987 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / Re-appointment Liable to retire by rotation 

Educational Qualifications Bachelor of Commerce 

Profile & Experience 

He has completed his Bachelor of Commerce from University of 
Bombay in 1987. He has a work experience of around 33 years 
in the agri-commodities industry. He primarily looks after the 
overall business operations of the Company, including 
international trade, finance and formulation of policies for the 
business development. 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Business Operations 

Relationship with Directors / KMP of the Company 
Brother of Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal (Whole-time Director) and Mr. 
Dhirendra Shrishrimal (Whole-time Director& CFO). 

Directorship in other listed entities  N.A. 

Listed entities from which Director has resigned in the 
past 3 years. 

N.A. 

Chairmanship / Membership of the Committees of other 
listed entities. 

N.A. 

Shareholding in KN Agri Resources Limited 
(as on 31.03.2022) 

845327 Shares 
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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT / VARIATION IN 
TERMS OF REMUNERATION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015] 

 

 

Name Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00860294 

Date of Birth November 20, 1970 

Age 51 years 

Nationality Indian 

Date of first appointment in the Board September 01, 1992. 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / Re-appointment Liable to retire by rotation 

Educational Qualifications Bachelor of Commerce 

Profile & Experience 
He has an experience of around 29 years in the agri-
commodities industry. He currently overseas and controls the 
manufacturing operations and retail marketing operations. 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Manufacturing and Retail Marketing Operations 

Relationship with Directors / KMP of the Company 
Brother of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal (Chairman & Managing 
Director) and Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal (Whole-time Director& 
CFO). 

Directorship in other listed entities  N.A. 

Listed entities from which Director has resigned in the 
past 3 years. 

N.A. 

Chairmanship / Membership of the Committees of other 
listed entities. 

N.A. 

Shareholding in KN Agri Resources Limited 
(as on 31.03.2022) 

845327 Shares 
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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT / VARIATION IN 
TERMS OF REMUNERATION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015] 

 

 

Name Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00324169 

Date of Birth March 20, 1972 

Age 49 years 

Nationality Indian 

Date of first appointment in the Board January 01, 1998 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / Re-appointment Liable to retire by rotation 

Educational Qualifications Bachelor of Commerce 

Profile & Experience 

He has completed his Bachelor of Commerce from University of 
Bombay in 1992. He has an experience of around 26 years in the 
agri-commodities industry. He currently overseas and controls 
the Banking and Finance Operations as well as domestic trading 
operations. 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Banking  & Finance Operations 

Relationship with Directors / KMP of the Company Brother of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal (Chairman & Managing 
Director) and Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal (Whole-time Director). 

Directorship in other listed entities  N.A. 

Listed entities from which Director has resigned in the 
past 3 years. 

N.A. 

Chairmanship / Membership of the Committees of other 
listed entities. 

N.A. 

Shareholding in KN Agri Resources Limited 
(as on 31.03.2022) 

845326 Shares 
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BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT / VARIATION IN 
TERMS OF REMUNERATION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 
[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015] 

 

 

Name Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 09807751 

Date of Birth October 08, 1996. 

Age 26 years  

Nationality Indian 

Date of first appointment in the Board N.A. (Proposed to be appointed at the ensuing 35th AGM)  

Terms and Conditions of Appointment / Re-appointment Not liable to retire by rotation. 

Educational Qualifications Bachelor of Commerce 

Profile & Experience 

She is a Qualified Chartered Accountant, and has completed her 
Bachelor of Commerce from Bangalore University in 2017. She 
holds expertise in the fields of taxation laws and has an 
experience of handling internal audits. 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Taxation Laws & Audit 

Relationship with Directors / KMP of the Company N.A. 

Directorship in other listed entities  N.A. 

Listed entities from which Director has resigned in the 
past 3 years. 

N.A. 

Chairmanship / Membership of the Committees of other 
listed entities. 

N.A. 

Shareholding in KN Agri Resources Limited 
(as on 31.03.2022) 

Nil 
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KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 

 

REGD. OFFICE:  KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur, (C.G) - 492001 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Email: info@kngroup.in 
 

Form No. MGT-11 
[Proxy form] 

 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 

2014] 
 

35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Name of the member(s):  

Registered address:  

E-mail Id:  

Folio No/ Client Id:   

DP ID:  

 
 
I/We, being the member(s) of ______________________ shares of the above named company, hereby appoint: 
 

Name  E-mail ID  

Address 
 

 
Signature  

Or failing him/her, 

Name  E-mail ID  

Address 
 

 
Signature  

 

Or failing him/her, 

Name  E-mail ID  

Address 
 

 
Signature  

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 35th Annual general meeting/ of the 
company, to be held on the 26th day of December, 2022 at 03:00 p.m. at KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur-492001, Chattisgarh 
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
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S.NO. ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. 
To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company comprising Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss of the Company as on 31st March 2022, 
along with the notes appended thereto and the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. 
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal (DIN: 00323316), Director who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

S.NO. SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. 
To authorize the Board of Directors to borrow funds, not exceeding the prescribed limit passed by the 
members, pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4. 
To authorize the Board of Directors to create Charge in the assets of the Company, pursuant to Section 
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. To ratify the amount of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor of the Company for Financial year 2022-23. 

6. To approve the appointment of Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi as an Independent Director of the Company. 

7. 
To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal, Chairman and Managing Director of 
the Company. 

8. 
To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Shrishrimal, Whole-time Director of the 
Company. 

9. 
To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Dhirendra Shrishrimal, Whole-time Director of the 
Company. 

10. To grant exemption to the Auditors of the Company to attend General Meetings of the Company. 

 
 

Signed this _________day of________________________2022. 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE OF MEMBER 
 

 
 
 
SIGNATURE OF PROXY HOLDER 

 
 
 

 
Notes:  
 
 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, in not less than 

48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 
 A person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members, and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital 

of the Company carrying voting rights. 
 
 A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and 

such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 
 
 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 

2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified true copy of the Board resolution together with their specimen signature authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

  

 
 

Affix 
Revenue  

Stamp 
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KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 

 

REGD. OFFICE:  KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur, (C.G) - 492001 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Email: info@kngroup.in 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be filled and handed over at the entrance of the meeting venue) 

 
 

‘35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING’ 
 

 
NAME OF SHAREHOLDER 
(IN BLOCK LETTERS) 
 

 
 

 
REGISTERED ADDRESS OF 
SHAREHOLDER 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
REGISTERED FOLIO NO. / DP ID & 
CLIENT ID 
 

 

 
NO. OF SHARES 

 

 

 
NAME OF PROXYHOLDER /  
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE  
(IF ANY) 

 

 

 
I/we hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26th day of December, 
2022 at 03:00 p.m. at KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur-492001, Chhattisgarh, India. 

 
 
 

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy / Authorized Representative present:  
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KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 

 

REGD. OFFICE:  KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur, (C.G) - 492001 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Email: info@kngroup.in 

 

Form No. MGT-12 

POLLING PAPER 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c)of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
(Please fill and submit in the Ballot Box at the venue of the meeting.) 

‘35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING’ 
 

BALLOT PAPER 

NAME OF THE FIRST NAMED 
SHAREHOLDER : (In Block Letters) :  

POSTAL  ADDRESS :  

E-MAIL ID: :  

FOLIO NO.   
(Physical Shares) :  

CLIENT ID  
(Dematerialized Shares) :  

DP ID: 
(Dematerialized Shares) :  

CLASS OF SHARE : Equity 

 
I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary / Special resolution enumerated below by recording my 
assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner:  
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Item 
No. 

Particulars 

No. of 
Shares 
held by 

me 

Please insert tick mark (✔

)in either Assent or Dissent 

I assent to 
the 

Resolution 

(FOR) 

I dissent to 
the 

Resolution 
(AGAINST) 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone and 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company comprising 
Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss of the Company as 
on 31st March 2022, along with the notes appended thereto and 
the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

   

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay Shrishrimal (DIN: 
00323316), Director who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

   

3. To authorize the Board of Directors to borrow funds, not 
exceeding the prescribed limit passed by the members, pursuant 
to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

   

4. To authorize the Board of Directors to create Charge in the assets 
of the Company, pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

   

5. To ratify the amount of remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor 
of the Company for Financial year 2022-23. 

   

6. To approve the appointment of Ms. Deeptimayee Vidushi as an 
Independent Director of the Company. 

   

7. To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Vijay 
Shrishrimal, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. 

   

8. To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Vijay 
Shrishrimal, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. 

   

9. To approve the revision in terms of remuneration of Mr. Vijay 
Shrishrimal, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. 

   

10. To grant exemption to the Auditors of the Company to attend 
General Meetings of the Company. 

   

 
 

 
Place:   Raipur (C.G.) ______________________________________ 
Dated:    Signature of the Member/Proxy holder 

 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Notes: 

 Unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms are liable to be rejected and the decision of the Scrutinizer on the validity of 
the forms will be final. 
 

 In case the member casts his votes through both the processes i.e., E-voting and Physical Ballot Form, the votes in the 
electronic system would be considered and the Ballot Form would be ignored. 

 The votes should be cast either in favour or against by putting the tick mark (✔) in the column provided for asset or dissent. 
Ballot Form bearing tick marks in both the columns will render the Ballot Form invalid. 

 Voting rights shall be reckoned on the basis of paid up value of the shares. 

 There will be only one Ballot Form for every Folio/ DP ID & Client ID irrespective of the number of joint members. 
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KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 

 

REGD. OFFICE:  KN Building, Panchsheel, Raipur, (C.G) - 492001 
CIN: L15141CT1987PLC003777 

Email: info@kngroup.in 

 

ROUTE MAP 

(VENUE OF THE 35TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING) 
13-A, KN Building, Panchsheel Nagar, Civil Lines, Raipur-492001 

 

Contact: 0771-2293706/08 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KN AGRI RESOURCES LIMITED 
e-mail: info@kngroup.in 
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